Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS)
Meeting to be held in Rooms 6 and 7, Civic Hall on
Thursday, 25th September, 2008 at 10.00 am
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.)
MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
B Atha S Bentley (Chair) C Campbell G Driver -

Weetwood
Otley and Yeadon
Middleton Park

C Fox -

Adel and Wharfedale

R Harington -

Gipton and Harehills

V Kendall J Lewis T Murray R Pryke A Shelbrooke L Yeadon -

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services
Civic Hall
LEEDS LS1 1UR

Kirkstall

Andy Booth
24 74325

Roundhay
Kippax and Methley
Garforth and Swillington
Burmantofts and Richmond
Hill
Harewood
Kirkstall

Principal Scrutiny Advisor:
Richard Mills
Tel: 2474557
Produced on Recycled Paper

A

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

2

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours
before the meeting).

B

Item
No
3

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

4

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of
the Members Code of Conduct.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.

6

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

1-6

To receive and approve the minutes of the
previous meeting held on
7

REGIONAL GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

7 - 20

To consider the report of the Chief Executive’s
Support Unit on Regional Governance
Arrangements
8

INQUIRY INTO VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND
FAITH SECTOR - SESSION 1

21 44

To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development.
9

PROGRESS REPORT OF THE BOARD'S
WORKING GROUPS
To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development

C

45 48

Item
No
10

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
WORK PROGRAMME
To consider the attached report of the Head of
Scrutiny and Member Development

11

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 23 October 2008 at 10.00 a.m. (Premeeting for all Members at 9.30 a.m.)

D

49 90

Agenda Item 6
SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS)
MONDAY, 21ST JULY, 2008
PRESENT:

Councillor S Bentley in the Chair
Councillors B Atha, C Campbell, G Driver,
C Fox, V Kendall, J Lewis, T Murray,
A Shelbrooke and L Yeadon

6

Declarations of Interest
Councillor Murray declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Agenda Item
10, Inquiry on Voluntary Community Faith Sector – Draft Terms of Reference
due to his position as Chief Executive of the Learning Partnership. He
withdrew from the meeting during the voting and discussion on this item.
(Minute no. 11 refers).

7

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Harington and
Pryke.

8

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2008, be
confirmed as a correct record.

9

Input to the Work Programme
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
provided information and guidance to the Board on developing the work
programme for the 2008/09 Municipal Year. Documents appended to the
report included the Draft Memorandum of the Local Area Agreement, the
Leeds Strategic Plan and the Council Business Plan 2008-11.
The Chair welcomed the following to the meeting:
•
•
•
•

Councillor Andrew Carter, Deputy Leader of the Council
Paul Rogerson, Chief Executive
Jean Dent, Director of City Development
Neil Evans, Director of Neighbourhoods and Housing

Councillor Carter addressed the meeting. He informed the Board that he
represented the Council on a number of regional and sub-regional
partnerships and there was a clear role for the Board to undertake work on
developing relationships within the framework of partners. He reported that
the Yorkshire and Humberside Assembly was winding up, but there was a
developing agenda in the Leeds City Regions which considered issues such
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 25th September, 2008

Page 1

as housing, transport and the economy. He reported that a focus on the City
Region agenda would be welcomed as there was no scrutiny arrangement
currently in place and concern had been expressed by all members of the City
Regions regarding powers delegated to the Regional Development Agency.
He also reported that Leeds was involved with the Core Cities Group which
had direct contact with Government and also suggested looking at ways in
which relations could be enhanced with neighbouring authorities.
Paul Rogerson, Chief Executive addressed the meeting. He raised the
following points:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Partnership working with Bradford and the Leeds/Bradford Corridor
Government plans to transfer responsibilities to the Regional
Development Agency.
Single integrated strategies for spatial planning and economic
development.
Mechanisms of regional strategies.
The need for effective scrutiny mechanisms for the Leeds City Region.
Issues considered on a regional basis – transport, housing, planning,
innovation and economic development.

Jean Dent and Neil Evans also addressed the meeting. The following issues
were discussed:
•
•
•
•
•

Requirements of the new Transport Bill – there would be new
arrangements to replace the Passenger Transport Authorities.
Partnership arrangements across the City including those with the
Chamber of Commerce and the role of Enterprise Leeds.
Housing – how to increase supply and utilise the use of land more
efficiently.
Worklessness and skills – Partnership arrangements under the Local
Area Agreement with Job Centre+.
Spending arrangements under the Local Area Agreements.

In response to issues raised, Members discussed the following:
•

•
•

•

How to include local involvement when decisions were made at a
regional level. It was reported that there was no weighted voting
across the regional decision making process and Members expressed
concern at this. It was suggested that it population should be taken
into account with voting to make decisions more representative
towards local residents.
Business rates – it was reported that the repatriation of business rates
was not under consideration.
Accountability at local level – it was reported that the removal of the
District Partnership level had given greater accountability to Area
Committees and this was reflected in the stronger development of Area
Delivery Plans.
Affordable housing and the social impacts of housing arrangements.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 25th September, 2008

Page 2

The Chair thanked those present for their attendance.
RESOLVED – That the report and discussion with officers and the Leader of
the Council be used to inform the development and approval of the Board’s
Work Programme.
(Councillor Shelbrooke left the meeting at 10.55 during discussion of this
item).
10

Request for Scrutiny Regarding University Fees
The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development outlined a
request for scrutiny that had been made by Leeds University Union
concerning their fees campaign.
The Chair welcomed the following to the meeting:
•
•

Mr Danial Adilypour, Education Officer, Leeds University Union
Mr Rob Damiao, Community Officer, Leeds University Union

Mr Adilypour addressed the meeting and reported on concerns of the Leeds
University Union regarding the current funding model for tuition fees and the
potential impact of the consequences on Leeds, particularly if an increase in
fees should be introduced following the 2009 review. Issues raised included
the following:
•

•

•

•

A recent report of the Scrutiny Board (City Development) had found
that the student population of Leeds contributed to 10 % of the city’s
economic input and to 5% of employment.
The Vision for Leeds had recognised Leeds as a city for students.
Under the new model for tuition fees, more people had been choosing
to study in their home towns and numbers of applicants for higher
education funding had fallen.
The Leeds Strategic Plan targeted an enhanced workforce. Much of
the Leeds economy focussed on the strength of the Media, Legal and
Financial Sectors. It was reported that a third of graduates went on to
employment in Leeds.
Fees could also be affected at other higher education establishments
including Leeds Metropolitan University, Leeds College of Art and
Design and Leeds College of Technology.

In response to the issues raised and the request for University Fees to be
scrutinised in further detail, Members discussed the following:
•

Post 16 student levels in Leeds were not currently high enough to meet
targets as outlined in the Leeds Strategic Plan and this would also
affect the number of students moving into higher education. Difficulties
attracting students from social or economic disadvantaged
backgrounds also needed to be addressed.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 25th September, 2008

Page 3

•

Bursary schemes and accessing funding – it was reported that there
was a massive under spend on bursary schemes in Leeds.
Administering of bursaries was overseen by the University, unregulated
and felt to be a confusing system for those who wished to apply.

RESOLVED - That the Board establish a University Fees Working Group
comprising Councillors Atha, Bentley, Kendall, Lewis and Yeadon to identify if
an inquiry was appropriate and if so to draw up suitable terms of reference for
consideration by the Board.
(Councillor Fox declared a personal interest in this item due to his position as
a Governor of the Leeds College of Technology.)
11

Inquiry on Voluntary Community Faith Sector - Draft Terms of Reference
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted draft terms of
reference for the Board’s proposed inquiry into the Voluntary Community Faith
Sector.
The Chair welcomed Sue Wynne, Head Of Regeneration Policy
And Planning and Pat Fairfax, Community Issues Co-ordinator to the meeting
for this item.
In brief summary, the following issues and suggestions for areas of scrutiny
were discussed:
•

•
•
•
•
•

This was a broad subject area and there were a number of key
indicators in the Leeds Strategic Plan that linked to the Voluntary
Community Faith Sector.
The range of work across the sector at different levels and areas.
Statutory duties carried out within the Voluntary Community Faith
Sector.
Resourcing issues.
Neighbourhood networks.
Case studies.

RESOLVED – That the terms of reference be agreed.
(Councillor Kendall declared a personal interest in this item due to her position
on Care for Roundhay Elderly).
12

Progress Report of the Board's Working Groups
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
outlined the progress of the Board’s Working Groups. Minutes of the Skills
Working Group were appended to the report and minutes of the Small
Business Working Group had been tabled.
RESOLVED – That progress on the Board’s Working Groups be noted.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 25th September, 2008

Page 4

13

Current Work Programme
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
outlined the Board’s current Work Programme. Also appended to the report
was a copy of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions and minutes of the latest
Executive Board meeting.
Further to the earlier item regarding input to the Work Programme, Members
discussed the following suggestions for addition to the Work Programme:
•
•
•
•

Governance of Partnerships and democratic involvement.
Single Regional Integrated Strategy.
The relationship between local authorities and the Regional
Development Agency.
The Transport Bill.

Further discussion focused on decision making where partnership
arrangements were involved and transparency and accountability for any
decisions.
RESOLVED – That subject to the inclusion of issues suggested, the Work
Programme be received and noted.
14

Date and Time of Next Meeting
Thursday, 25 September 2008 at 10.00 a.m. (pre-meeting at 9.30 a.m.).

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 25th September, 2008

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 7

Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:

247 4557

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 25th September 2008
Subject: Regional Governance Arrangements
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0

Introduction

1.1

At the last Board meeting Members asked for a report on the current regional
governance arrangements.

1.2

Attached is a report of the Chief Executive’s department setting out the present
arrangements.

1.3

It should be stressed that this report represents very much a snapshot in time as
the Government may be announcing their response to the Sub National Review of
Economic Development and Regeneration consultation in the week commencing
22nd September 2008. It is hoped therefore that by the time of the Board’s meeting
some of the issues may have become clearer, though it is still likely that the
'permissive' approach will continue to apply, with regions developing their own
solutions within the framework set by government.

1.4

A representative from the Chief Executive’s department will attend the meeting to
provide members with the latest update.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

Members are asked to consider the report and ask questions of the officer attending
the meeting and identify any possible area for further scrutiny on this issue.

Page 7

Background Papers
Government’s Sub national Review of Economic Development and Regeneration
Governance of Britain Green paper of July 2007
PSA Delivery Agreement
www.yhassembly.gov.uk/dnlds/joint%20Regional%20Response.pdf )
Regional Spatial Strategy – developed currently by the Regional Assembly
Northern Way
Yorkshire Forward www.yorkshire-forward.com
Northern Way Homes and Communities Agency
Regional Director for Yorkshire and Humber
Leeds City Region Development Programme
Regional Advisory Boards
Yorkshire and Humber Assembly www.yhassembly.gov.uk
Leeds City Region www.leeds.gov.uk/leedscityregion
www.leeds.gov.uk/leedscityregion/lcrfiles.html
www.berr.gov.uk
www.communities.gov.uk
www.lgyh.gov.uk
Leeds City Region multi–area agreement

Page 8

Originator:

Catherine Hall

Tel: 0113 2474725
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board: City and Regional Partnerships
Date: 25th September 2008
Subject: Regional Governance Arrangements
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

1.0

Introduction - Scope of the Report

Members of Scrutiny have asked for an outline of current governance arrangements at regional and
city regional level. What follows is an overview of that complex ‘landscape’. There is inevitably
fluidity around precise future arrangements in the wake of the Government’s Subnational Review of
Economic Development and Regeneration ( hereafter SNR) but work is progressing in advance of
the Government’s consultation response to SNR which is expected in late September or early
October ( possibly prior to the next meeting of Scrutiny Board). It will be important to provide an
update on this issue to Scrutiny board as inevitably many of the uncertainties outlined in this paper
could be resolved at that time.
The report also touches on other aspects of change in areas of transport and housing and
regeneration which are linked. Members are intending to undertake a specific inquiry into the Leeds
City Region multi–area agreement and the difference it makes in terms of practical delivery, so only
limited detail is given here on that work.
In terms of recent history, members will be aware of many changes under the term of the present
Government, the creation of Regional Development Agencies, the development of Regional
Assemblies and their designated role as regional planning bodies as well as John Prescott’s elected
regional assembly proposal which was shelved after it failed to attract popular support. The Regional
Funding Allocations advice process was introduced in 2005/6 (the second round of this is due to
commence shortly). One of the more recent innovations coinciding with the Governance of Britain
Green paper of July 2007 has been in Regions now having their own designated Ministers.
Devolving decision making to the regions has been a strong theme in Government reports in recent
years linked to PSA Delivery Agreement 7: Improve the economic performance of all English
regions and reduce the gap in economic growth rates between regions. There has been an
increasing recognition of the pivotal importance of cities and their functional economies ( also termed
city regions) as drivers of the national economy. Leeds has been at the forefront of thinking on this,
not only through its own Leeds City Region, but also via the collective work of the Core Cities group

Page 9

of eight English cities ( Birmingham, Bristol, Leeds, Liverpool, Manchester, Newcastle, Nottingham,
Sheffield).
Since the publication of SNR, there has been much discussion around the degree to which the SNR
agenda represents further delegation from the centre or genuine devolution of powers from central
government. While this debate will no doubt continue, practical discussions have been taking place
in Yorkshire and the Humber to progress change. This report outlines the joint local government /
Yorkshire Forward proposal which it is hoped will underpin those new arrangements.
One area of the potential new regional arrangements which has not yet been firmed up is that of
scrutiny, within the region in terms of the new processes and delivery arrangements which will apply
post SNR and at a national level. Government is expected to respond shortly to proposals recently
put by Parliament’s Modernisation Select Committee, proposing that Regional Select Committees be
established on a temporary basis until the end of this Parliament when there needs to be a review of
their effectiveness. It is suggested that these Select Committees reflect the political balance of the
House rather than the region, and would meet six times a year. This would be supplemented with a
Grand Committee in the region to be held twice a year. ( See appendix 1 below for an outline of
current scrutiny arrangements)
The focus of this report is on the key players, it does not attempt to represent the complexity of
delivery arrangements across specific functions. Because the regional agenda is littered with
acronyms a glossary is provided as appendix 2 to this report, together with web address details for
relevant bodies.
2.0

Key players - present and possible future roles

In terms of presenting a simple summary ‘who’s who’ of regional governance the following represents
an outline of the role of the current key players and comments on the degree of change which is
likely in the short to medium term, bearing in mind that the Government has yet to respond formally
on the SNR.
Regional
body /
player

Summary of current regional role and
responsibilities

Yorkshire
and Humber
Assembly

•

•
•

•

•

•

Agrees and reviews progress on the region’s
vision and priorities for a better and sustainable
future, overseeing an Integrated Regional
Framework to guide the work of other regional
strategies and plans;
Lobbies, nationally and in Europe, to get the best
possible deal for the region.
Is the regional planning body, overseeing work
with partners to shape where and what types of
development will meet the future needs of the
region;
Oversees work to develop and implement the
Yorkshire and Humber Plan (including the
Regional Transport Strategy), and the Regional
Housing Strategy, and helps shape the Regional
Economic Strategy and other important regional
plans;
Is responsible for scrutinising the Regional
Economic Strategy to ensure that work to secure
sustainable economic development and growth is
delivering real benefits for the region; and
Ensures regional agencies are accountable to the
region through the active, majority involvement of
all 22 Local Authority Leaders working alongside
social, economic and environmental partners.

Page 10

Comment on future role /
responsibilities

Government have stated that Regional
Assemblies will not exist in their current
form post SNR implementation.
However many of the functions which
are carried out by the assembly will
continue, many within expanded RDAs.
The function of regional planning body
is an issue of particular significance and
concern for local authorities and
democratic accountability, whether that
passes to RDAs is still a particularly
active issue for debate. Transitional
arrangements will be needed to provide
continuity of activity.

Local
Government
Yorkshire
and Humber

The regional partnership of local authorities, which
enables them to work together and collaborate on
issues of common purpose.
•

•
•

•
•

Government
Office for
Yorkshire
and the
Humber

bringing together local authorities within the region
to discuss/debate/share learning on key issues
affecting local government and will agree a
strategic response on these issues.
supporting councils to improve how they deliver
services.
contributing to and influencing Government on the
future of local government, developing a vision for
local government in Yorkshire and Humber.
work with local authorities to help them improve as
employers.
work with local authorities to improve the public
perception of local government

Works with organisations across the Region to deliver
Government policies and programmes and to
contribute a regional perspective in their development.

LGYH was formed in 2006 As part of a
de-merger of the former association of
Local Authorities from the Yorkshire and
Humber Assembly to form LGYH. As
such the SNR does not directly impact
on all areas of their focus ( local
government improvement and efficiency
priorities for example) , but the changing
relationships between local government
and the regional development agency
and the means by which that
relationship is supported have
implications for the way LGYH operates
in future.

Government offices were subject to a
Treasury review in 2006 which has
resulted in a more strategic and focused
approach to their operation.

Works for 11 Government Departments:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Cabinet Office
Department of Culture Media and Sport
Department for Children, Schools and Families
Department for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs
Department of Health
Department for Business,Enterprise and
Regulatory Reform
Department for Transport
Department for Work and Pensions
Home Office
Department for Communities and Local
Government
Ministry of Justice

As the representative of central Government in the
region, they promote effective integration of policies
and programmes so that they reflect priorities at
regional and local level.
Overall aim is to deliver thriving and sustainable
communities across the region by working in
partnership, ensuring effective delivery of Government
programmes and informing policy development to:
•
•

•

Improve the economy
Improve the quality of life of all those who live
or work in the region, and the quality of
experience for those who visit
Protect and improve the natural and built
environment.

Page 11

As part of the SNR process
Government offices will have a pivotal
role in supporting the transition process
and implementation of new
arrangements including the
development of new regional strategies
and governance arrangements. This is
detailed in the Strategic Priorities
Framework 2008-11 for Government
Offices .

Yorkshire
Forward

Yorkshire Forward has three aims that the region as a
whole must deliver, and around which the whole
Regional Economic Strategy has been structured:
•

•

•

Enhancing and realising the potential of all
Yorkshire and Humber’s people to achieve a
healthy learning region and social inclusion
Growing existing and new businesses to
achieve high and stable levels of economic
growth and jobs
Utilising the full potential of Yorkshire and
Humber’s physical and cultural assets,
maximising resource efficiency and conserving
and enhancing its environment to achieve an
integrated, sustainable economy.

Though potentially gaining functions
from the regional assemblies, under
SNR proposals RDAs will also become
more strategic – they will delegate more
to local authorities and others ‘best
placed to deliver economic
improvements’. They would lead the
development of new integrated regional
stragies ( see below for discussion on
joint RDA/ Local authority leader’s
proposal).

Yorkshire Forward have also worked since 2004 with
the two other RDAs in the Northern Way partnership
aimed at closing the prosperity gap between the
northern regions and the UK average.

Regional
Minister

As outlined in the Governance of Britain 2007 Green
paper their role is to:
• advise the Secretary of State for Business,
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform on the
approval of regional strategies and
appointment of RDA Chairs and Boards;
• represent regional interests in the formulation
of central government policy relevant to
economic growth and sustainable
development in areas that have not been
devolved to the RDAs;
• facilitate a joined up approach across
government departments and agencies to
enable the effective delivery of the single
regional strategy;
• champion the region at high level events and
with regard to high profile projects (including
through a programme of regional visits); and
represent the Government with regard to
central government policy at regional select
committee hearings and at parliamentary
debates focused specifically on the region.

The role has been in existence for just
over a year, there has been no formal
review of the role of regional ministers
or particular indication within the SNR
documents of how this role may change
in the future.

Each regional minister has developed their own
approach to consultation and engagement within their
regions.

3.0

Regional Proposals : Future arrangements leading to 2010: Single Integrated Regional
Strategy

The future relationship between local government and Yorkshire Forward is pivotal to the delivery of
the aspirations of the SNR, namely ‘unleashing the economic potential’ of local authorities and
regions. While the principles for the development of the integrated regional strategy (IRS) and the
engagement of local authority partners are laid out in the SNR, defining precise arrangements is
being left to each region.
Local government in Yorkshire together with Yorkshire Forward have submitted a position paper
proposal to Government in response to the SNR on the development and delivery of the IRS for the
region to ensure co-ownership from the outset.

Page 12

It proposes that a strategic relationship between a local government Strategic Leaders Board and
Yorkshire Forward’s Board will be at the heart of the joint working arrangements. The purpose of the
strategic relationship will be to work towards agreement on the IRS, by adopting a joint approach to
the development, agreement and delivery, and regional decisions on investment (such as RFA),
policy and influencing with national government.
What follows is a summary of those regional proposals ( full document is available at
www.yhassembly.gov.uk/dnlds/joint%20Regional%20Response.pdf )
3.1

Purpose of single, integrated regional strategy

The SNR proposes bringing together a number of regional strategies into a single, integrated regional
strategy. This is intended to provide the region with a vision of ‘how and where sustainable economic
growth would be delivered’. Whilst the focus is on bringing together the economic (i.e. Regional
Economic Strategy currently a RDA responsibility) and spatial (Regional Spatial Strategy –
developed currently by the Regional Assembly), the IRS will incorporate a range of other regional
strategies and frameworks – i.e. housing, transport, culture and sustainable development.
The preparation of the IRS will be further clarified in time and more guidance is expected on the
details following the SNR consultation process. However, the SNR consultation document stresses
the need for its development to be ‘robust, transparent, open and efficient’.
3.2

Building from the Local upwards – Functional sub regions

At the core of SNR is the principle of subsidiarity - that things should be built up from the local level
and that there is an onus on ‘doing things at the right level’ to achieve the objective of sustainable
economic growth.
This is reflected in the RDAs having a more strategic role in guiding sustainable economic growth
and seeking to delegate delivery to the most appropriate level. The SNR details those areas where
RDAs will retain a regional role, but over time the expectation is that they will focus on the strategic
elements for the region and will delegate an increasing amount of funding to those best placed to
deliver economic improvements.
Local authorities’ role in economic development has been reinforced and the SNR contains a number
of proposals to improve economic performance and regeneration at the local level, such as the
preparation of local economic assessments to guide priorities and interventions. In discharging these
responsibilities, authorities will need to have increasing regard to what is happening beyond their
administrative boundaries.
As the rationale for SNR and delivering the IRS is primarily an economic one, then it is both sensible
and appropriate that local authorities organise themselves to develop policy and deliver on relevant,
strategic economic issues on this basis – i.e. as functional sub regions.
Each functional sub region:
-

Will undertake the appropriate level of economic analysis to inform IRS development, building on
individual local authority’s local economic assessment;
Building on the economic analysis, determine the priorities for investment at the functional sub
region level; and
Input into land use proposals for the IRS

This work will be agreed by the relevant Leaders group in the functional sub region with input from
the representatives of Yorkshire Forward’s Board.
The economic geography of the region is complex, with a large number of interconnected towns and
cities, together with a significant rural area, largely to the North of the region. Work undertaken to

Page 13

date, largely in response to the Northern Way, has identified three functional sub regions where there
is a large degree of inter-relationships and interdependency, i.e. a)
The Hull & Humber Ports City Region:
b)
Leeds City Region
c)
Sheffield City Region
d)
In addition to these functional sub regions, focused around the major settlements,
there is a fourth area characterised by rural economy focused on North Yorkshire.
It is proposed that the North Yorkshire area is included as a fourth functional sub
region.
The boundaries of these functional sub regions are overlapping: the Leeds and Sheffield City
Regions both influence to a significant extent Barnsley; and the Leeds City Region and North
Yorkshire rural economy. The rationale for working across functioning economies means that some
flexibility is required around boundaries. Existing functional sub regional arrangements are each at
different stages of evolution, with Leeds City Region currently demonstrating the most maturity in
terms of robust governance arrangements.
3.3

New Strategic Relationship arrangements

A strategic leaders board of 8 local authority Leaders, two from each sub region is proposed,
mirrored by a group of members drawn from Yorkshire Forward’s board. The aim of this strategic
relationship would be seek to agree the IRS jointly, work on and agree regional investment decisions
(such as Regional Funding Allocations ( RFA); and work for the region on strategic, economic
matters. The strategic relationship would have a key role in making recommendations back to
Ministers, for example.
Both sides of the strategic relationship will come together to reach agreement on the content of IRS
and RFA. Issues will either be agreed by both parties or not agreed. It is not proposed to have joint
voting on issues and therefore decision-making is not dependent on the numbers on either side of
the relationship. Both sides of the strategic relationship will have responsibility for reporting back via
their respective ‘constituencies’ – i.e. the 22 Local Authorities or the Yorkshire Forward Board, and
final ratification of the IRS would be held by these groups.
The SNR consultation indicates that where agreement cannot be reached, the matter is referred to
Ministers by the RDA (the IRS needs to be jointly signed off by both Secretaries of State (BERR &
CLG)). The proposal from the Yorkshire & Humber region is that where SLB and YFB are unable to
reach agreement, an appropriate advisory group (see below) will be tasked to provide a way forward,
if agreement still cannot be reached after this the submission to Ministers would set out both sets of
arguments with supporting evidence.
3.4

Regional Advisory Boards

It is proposed that a small number of thematic advisory boards are commissioned by SLB/YFB to
input into the development of the IRS and ensure effective delivery by monitoring and reviewing the
IRS.
Four thematic advisory boards are proposed
§

Spatial Planning - Chaired by Local Government, deputy Chair nominated by YFB;

§

Regeneration and Housing - Chaired by Local Government, deputy Chair nominated by
YFB, this Board will also have a direct role in advising the Homes and Communities Agency;

§

Work and Skills - Chair nominated by YFB, deputy chair Local Government. This Board will
replace the current Regional Skills Board and have a direct role in advising the LSC (and its
successor agencies);

§

Transport - Chair nominated by YFB, deputy chair Local Government.

Page 14

The Chair and Deputy Chair for each advisory board will decide the membership of that Board; but
membership will include representation from the functional sub regions, expert observers, key
agencies and stakeholders.
In addition to the four thematic advisory boards, an Independent Board to ensure that the principles of
sustainable development and economic opportunity for all are embedded in the development and
delivery of the IRS is proposed.
3.5

Transitional Arrangements post SNR

It should be stressed that the outline above is a proposal from the Region at this stage, Government
have not yet responded following the consultation period, a formal response is expected, probably at
the end of September linked to the close of a separate consultation period on the call for evidence
from the BERR select committee into the role of RDAs.
Despite this ‘gap’ in terms of progressing the approach outlined above there is a strong desire within
the region to make progress as soon as possible, as a first step Local Government Yorkshire and
Humber have put in place changes to current leadership arrangements. It was agreed that LGYH
Executive Board should be reviewed and become the new Leaders Board and that representation on
this Board should be two Leader representatives from each functional sub-region ( reflecting the
proposals above). The LGYH Leaders board held its first meeting on 4 September and its first joint
meeting with the YFB members is due in October or November 2008. From Leeds City Region Cllr
Robert Light ( Kirklees) and Cllr Andrew Carter ( Leeds) are the Leader representatives on the
Strategic Leaders Board.
In terms of working on practical arrangements at a regional level, the greatest implications for change
will be on Regional Assemblies, work is being undertaken to prioritise their work and to begin to
consider the implications of SNR changes on their activity, on their staffing and the work of the
current regional boards. Very significant delivery commitments will need to continue during this
transitional period, particularly in respect of the Regional Spatial Strategy (The Yorkshire and
Humber Plan ) which is being updated over the next year to look at housing growth in the Region it is
intended to submit the update to Government in July 2009 .
4.0

Leeds City Region Leaders Board

As noted above Leeds City Region ( LCR) is one of the functional sub regions within Yorkshire and
Humber. Having established an informal partnership in 2004, the Leeds City Region Leaders board
was established as a Joint Committee in April 2007, the first city region nationally to have adopted a
formal governance structure of this kind. Leeds is the support services authority and provides the key
secretariat staffing support. The key city region priorities have been identified in the Leeds City
Region Development Programme which was launched at Westminster in the autumn of 2006. A new
2008/9 Agenda document will be available shortly which identifies the range of current LCR
priorities.
A number of thematic panels ( which are not themselves sub committees) report to the board. Board
meetings are held in public and papers of the LCR are available on line ( see below for web links). A
business leadership group is also in place providing private sector input to the partnership.
In terms of current priorities and actions, Leeds City Region was one of seven sub regional groupings
to agree a multi area agreement with Government in June 2008 with transport and skills as the key
elements. Leaders board has initiated a review of transport governance arrangements in Leeds City
Region in response to the Local Transport Bill and the proposed creation of integrated transport
authorities. Important work is currently being undertaken on housing growth issues. As noted above
in the discussion on the regional picture, functional sub regions including LCR, will be expected to
provide significant input to the RFA advice process currently in progress and the new IRS

Page 15

5.0

Homes and Communities Agency

Finally, in addition to the arrangements noted above it is worth being aware of the creation of a new
body which will have a regional presence. The Northern Way Homes and Communities Agency will
bring together housing and regeneration into one national agency. It will combine English
Partnerships, the investment programme of the Housing Corporation, the Academy for Sustainable
Communities ( based in Leeds) and key housing and regeneration programmes, currently delivered
by Communities and Local Government ( Thames Gateway Delivery, Housing Market Renewal,
Decent Homes and Mixed Communities and the Places for Change Programmes). This new
organisation formally comes into existence in December 2008.
With over 900 staff and an annual budget of around £5 billion, the HCA will be the country’s single,
national housing and regeneration agency. It will be responsible for meeting national targets for
growth, renewal and affordable housing in a sustainable way that corresponds to the needs of local
areas. The expressed intention is that its strong regional presence and flexible investment approach
will mean that the HCA will “operate as a national organisation that delivers locally”.
A key strength will be its ability to have a single conversation with local authorities and other partners
to agree shared housing growth and regeneration needs. The Regional Director for Yorkshire and
Humber has recently been appointed, David Curtis who is currently Director of Development for
Sheffield City Council.

Background Papers
Government’s Subnational Review of Economic Development and Regeneration
Governance of Britain Green paper of July 2007
PSA Delivery Agreement
www.yhassembly.gov.uk/dnlds/joint%20Regional%20Response.pdf )
Regional Spatial Strategy – developed currently by the Regional Assembly
Northern Way
Yorkshire Forward www.yorkshire-forward.com
Northern Way Homes and Communities Agency
Regional Director for Yorkshire and Humber
Leeds City Region Development Programme
Regional Advisory Boards
Yorkshire and Humber Assembly www.yhassembly.gov.uk
Leeds City Region www.leeds.gov.uk/leedscityregion
www.leeds.gov.uk/leedscityregion/lcrfiles.html
www.berr.gov.uk
www.communities.gov.uk
www.lgyh.gov.uk
Leeds City Region multi–area agreement

Page 16

Appendices
Appendix 1
Current Scrutiny Arrangements
Regionally
At a regional level Yorkshire and Humber Assembly operates an independent Scrutiny Board, as
part of its statutory responsibility to scrutinise collective delivery of the Regional Economic Strategy,
led by Yorkshire Forward. A standing panel of eight full Assembly members forms the board. Two
formal scrutiny reviews are undertaken each year. The most recent scrutiny reports have been on
Rural Economy, Employment and Innovation. The latest study on Climate Change – looking at how
the Yorkshire and Humber region and Yorkshire Forward in particular, is addressing climate change
is due for publication shortly.
Cllr Cleasby is a newly appointed member of the scrutiny board. In 2008/9 the next scrutiny inquiry
will be on the issue of Investment Planning.
Developing a new arrangement for regional scrutiny will be an important element of post SNR
arrangements, there are no proposals yet developed on how this will operate, whether it will be a
function delivered via LGYH or through an independent body ( given the role of both YF board and
local authority leaders in developing the IRS) . YHA is currently undertaking a review of its existing
scrutiny arrangements which will be consulted on shortly with local authorities. LGYH will be working
with the Centre for Public Scrutiny to consider the issue from a local government perspective.
Nationally
The Modernisation of the House of Commons Select Committee has recently published findings into
regional accountability.
The enquiry considered the nature of the accountability ‘gap’ at a regional level and how
Parliamentary scrutiny could best be implemented. It concluded that ‘many of the activities in regions
are not subject to regular, robust scrutiny.’
Their conclusions were that the most effective means of strengthening regional accountability was to
establish a system of regional select committees with up to 10 MPs in each, one for each of the
English regions ( with the exception of London). There was also a recommendation for the
establishment of two regional grand committee meetings per year in each region to take the form of a
general debate and questions to the relevant regional minister. They proposed that a large proportion
of meetings should take place outside Westminster. The committee recommended to Government
that these proposals should be implemented initially on a temporary basis until the end of the present
parliament. The Committee did not comment on ‘local’ scrutiny arrangements which might be applied
within regions – referring that issue to other Departments including Communities and Local
Government for consideration .
Government has yet to respond to the recommendations of the select committee.
Leeds City Region
Leeds City Region Leaders Board considered the issue of scrutiny arrangements at their meeting on
April 7 2008. Each Local Authority Scrutiny Committee has the right under the Local Government Act
(1972, 2000), to hold their respective Leader to account for decisions made at the City Region
Leaders’ Board. There is no legal requirement for a Joint Committee to develop further scrutiny
requirements, nor are there any legal barriers to any such arrangements being developed.
As part of its discussion around possible future scrutiny arrangements Leaders considered the
following options in some detail:
•

Option 1 - Maintain current arrangements – through their existing scrutiny functions, each
authority holds their Leader to account for decisions made at Leaders Board.

Page 17

•

Option 2 – Current arrangements with a partnership approach. Under this model the
locally determined arrangements would continue but a Protocol / Memorandum of
Understanding would be developed between the member authorities so that each was
aware of any proposals to conduct scrutiny in another authority and discussions could
take place to ensure a collaborative approach which would avoid or reduce duplication of
scrutiny. Consideration could be given to making each authority a ‘lead authority for a
particular area of scrutiny and/or ad hoc joint arrangements could be entered into for
particular matters to be the subject of scrutiny.

•

Option 3 - Establish a joint scrutiny committee of 11 non executive councillors (one from
each local authority)

•

Option 4 - Establish a larger joint committee on a proportionality basis

•

Option 5 - Establish a smaller joint committee with delegated authority to act on behalf of
all 11 councils

The full report is available at www.leeds.gov.uk/leedscityregion/lcrfiles.html
Leaders board agreed to option 1, but for this to be reviewed in 12 months time, bearing in mind the
evolving nature of Leeds City Region activity.

Page 18

Appendix 2
Glossary and Web links
BERR – Department for Business Enterprise and Regulatory Reform, the responsible
department for RDAs. www.berr.gov.uk
CLG – Communities and Local Government www.communities.gov.uk
GOYH – Government Office for Yorkshire and the Humber. www.gos.gov.uk/goyh
HCA - Homes and Communities agency. A new body combining English Partnerships, the
investment programme of the Housing Corporation, the Academy for Sustainable
Communities and key housing and regeneration programmes, currently delivered by
Communities and Local Government. The agency is not yet operational.
IRS –
Integrated Regional Strategy, an SNR proposal which will see an integration of
current regional strategies into one.
ITA – Integrated Transport Authority. A proposal in the Local Transport Bill to replace
Passenger Transport Authorities.
LCR - Leeds City Region, the functional economic sub region. Leadership is provided by
leaders of eleven member local authorities . For meetings and a copy of the City Region
Development Programme see www.leeds.gov.uk/leedscityregion
LGYH - Local Government Yorkshire and Humber, the regional partnership of local
authorities. www.lgyh.gov.uk
SNR - Subnational Review of Economic Development and Regeneration.
See Community and Local Government webside www.communities.gov.uk
MAA - multi-area agreements
RFA - regional funding allocations.
YF – Yorkshire Forward the regional development agency www.yorkshire-forward.com
YFB – Yorkshire Forward Board
YHA – Yorkshire and Humber Assembly. www.yhassembly.gov.uk

Page 19

Appendix 3
Summary of Leeds / city region representation on regional boards 2008/9

Board
YHA Regional
Executive
Board

Leeds City Region
representative
Cllr Andrew Carter
( Deputy - Cllr
McAllister –
Calderdale)

W Yorks representative

Chair of Board

Deputy

Cllr. Robert Light
(Kirklees)

Cllr. Peter Box
(Wakefield)

Paul Jagger – ( South
Yorkshire LSC – SEE
partner)

YHA Regional
Transport
Board
YHA Regional
Planning
Board

Cllr Andrew Carter
( Deputy Cllr
Galloway – York)
Cllr Hawkeswortth
( Bradford)
Deputy Cllr
Mackenzie
Harrogate)

Cllr. Anne Hawkesworth
(Bradford)

Cllr Mark Kirk

Cllr. Barry Anderson

Cllr Peter Box (
Wakefield)

Cate Hammond (SEE
partner)

YHA Regional
Housing
Board

Cllr Waller ( York)
( deputy Cllr Mark
Crane, Selby)

Cllr. Liz Smaje (Kirklees
on behalf of WYHP)

Cllr Hopkins
( Bradford)

Patricia Farrell ( SEE
partner)

YHA
Sustainable
Development
Board
LGYH
Leaders
Board

No City Region
representative

Cllr. Ken Sims (Kirklees)

Cllr Arthur Barker (
Hambleton)

Naheed Arshad Mather

Cllr Andrew Carter

Cllr Robert Light (
Kirklees)

Cllr Barker
( Hambleton)

Cllr Roger Stone
( Rotherham)

YHA Scrutiny Board – members do not sit on this board as representatives of an authority or group of
authorities, but in their own right. The 2008/9 board includes Cllr Brian Cleasby ( Leeds) .

Page 20

Agenda Item 8
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:

247 4557

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 25th September 2008
Subject: Inquiry on Voluntary Community and Faith Sector – Session 1
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0 Introduction
1.1 The Board at its last meeting approved the attached terms of reference for an inquiry on
the Voluntary Community and Faith Sector.
1.2 This particular inquiry involves a number of departments and partners but principally the
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods is taking the lead role on this issue.
2.0 Session 1 of the Board’s Inquiry
2.1 The purpose of this session is to hear evidence about:
•
•
•

current and emerging consultation obligations;
the arrangements in place within the Council for community engagement at
strategic, service and area level; and
the strengths and weaknesses of the current approaches and opportunities and
barriers to improve practice.

2.2 The attached report of the Director Environment and Neighbourhoods addresses these
Issues.
3.0

Recommendations

3.1

Members are asked to;
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Receive the report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods.
Consider what, if any, further information or points of clarification the Board
requires to conclude Session 1 of its inquiry.
Discuss any subsequent issues.
Identify for session 2 of the Board’s Inquiry on 23rd October the witnesses it
would like to hear evidence from.
Page 21

Background Papers
Board’s terms of Reference,
Government’s Empowerment White Paper ‘Communities in Control: Real People, Real
Power’
Leeds Strategic Plan
Council Community Engagement policy
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA)
Equality Standard for Local Government
Local Government and Public Involvement in Heath Act
Vision for Leeds
Every Child Matters and the Children Act 2004

Page 22

Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Inquiry into the role of the voluntary, community and faith sectors (VCFS)
in council led community engagement
Terms of Reference
1.0

Introduction

1.1

At the first meeting of this new Scrutiny Board, members agreed to carry out an
inquiry into the role of the voluntary, community and faith sector in community
engagement.

1.2

In particular Members were keen to establish what opportunities exist to improve
voluntary, community and faith sector (VCFS) participation and influence, including:
•
•

1.3

exploring what opportunities exist to strengthen the voluntary, community and
faith sector infrastructure which supports engagement, and
exploring what, if any, changes are necessary in the Council’s culture, policy
and practice to strengthen voluntary, community and faith sector engagement.

The context of and drivers for the inquiry are complex:
•

•

•

•

•
•

•
•

•

Members have their own experiences of voluntary, community and faith sector
participation and views about strengths and weaknesses and the potential for
improvement.
There is a Central Government agenda promoting greater levels of engagement,
including the recent publication of the Community Empowerment White Paper,
‘Communities in Control’, which will increase requirements for Councils to
promote, facilitate and deliver a wider range of engagement activity, with
demonstrable impacts on services and other decisions.
The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-2011 includes an improvement priority and a
national indicator on increasing the number of people who feel they can
influence decisions in their locality.
The Council has legal obligations it must meet in respect of Equality legislation.
It is required to evidence appropriate arrangements for engaging with all
communities.
The Council is a signatory to the Compact for Leeds, where community
participation and equal partnerships are key areas of focus.
Area Committees are about to significantly strengthen their community
engagement responsibilities, including a brief to agree Area Community
Engagement Plans with the goal of delivering better outcomes from local
services.
Other partners and partnerships across Leeds have their own drivers and
arrangements for engagement and many of these are also in transition.
Within the VCFS there are some well established and some newly emerging
networks and structures facilitating effective engagement, but as the Council
and other partners undergo transition to new structures and systems, so the
VCFS sector is required to adapt to meet changing needs as well as respond to
changing resourcing opportunities.
Finally, the recent wave of new accession state migration that Leeds has
experienced has highlighted the need to engage with new communities as they

Page 23

move to the City, to enable them to establish themselves and to ensure that
services are aware of and can respond to changing demands. In reality we need
to identify routes to engage with all of the communities in Leeds for the same
reasons. The VCF sector may have a key role to play in delivering on this goal.
•

2.0

The drivers and context exemplify the challenges and opportunities of the
engagement agenda for Leeds at this time. The scrutiny focus is timely and
provides an opportunity to draw together a number of issue, whilst spotlighting
some specific areas of focus.

The Scope of this Inquiry
The scope of this inquiry is to identify:
a the opportunities and barriers for engagement that exist for the VCFS and wider
community as the Council and others work towards achieving the LAA targets
set for Leeds.
b what good practice exists in Leeds and beyond that can be used and developed.
c

what resources and other support is required by the VCFS in order to play a full
role in delivering on the engagement and other targets for Leeds.

d

some of the changes that may be necessary in the Council’s policy, practice
and culture to deliver improved engagement outcomes for Leeds.

3.0

Comments of the relevant Director and Executive Board Member

3.1

The Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods, and the relevant Executive Board
Members have been requested to comment on these terms of reference.

4.0

Timetable for the Inquiry

4.1

The inquiry will take place over three sessions with a view to issuing a final report in
November 2008.

5.0

Submission of evidence

5.1

The following formal evidence gathering sessions have been scheduled:

5.2

Session One – 25th September 2008
The purpose of this session is to hear evidence about:
•
current and emerging consultation obligations;
•
the arrangements in place within the Council for community engagement at
strategic, service and area level; and
•
the strengths and weaknesses of the current approaches and opportunities
and barriers to improve practice.
In particular the Board will consider:
•
An overview of Council community consultation obligations, performance
requirements and commitments;

Page 24

•

•
•

•

•

5.3

An overview of current Corporate Consultation Policy and processes,
including: Place Survey; Citizens Panel and Corporate arrangements to
facilitate more effective community consultation across services and in
neighbourhoods, e.g. the Corporate Consultation Portal, emerging Equalities
Forum and Hubs;
An overview of Service based engagement practice, including examples of
good practice;
An overview of Area based engagement and the emerging role of Area
Committees in respect of community engagement as a tool for shaping Area
Delivery Plans, local services and activity;
An overview of the opportunities for and practice of engaging with the VCFS
at a strategic level e.g. on the development of key strategies like the
LAA/LSP or in key Leeds Initiative Partnerships;
Consideration of issues relating to reach, impact and opportunities for
coordination and improvement in practice.

Session Two – 23rd Ocober 2008
The purpose of this session is to:
•
•
•

hear evidence of examples of good practice in Leeds and other areas.
hear a VCFS perspective on the opportunities and barriers to participation
with the Council and others.
hear evidence from the VCFS and others about the capacity and
infrastructure for engagement within the VCFS

In particular the board will consider:
•
information requested from the last session;
•
a VCFS perspective on the opportunities for and barriers to, effective
participation at strategic, service and area level;
•
a VCFS perspective on the effectiveness and impact of engagement activity
at a strategic, service and area level;
•
views from VCFS and others on the strengths and weaknesses of the
capacity / infrastructure within the VCFS to support effective engagement.
•
evidence of examples of good practice from Leeds and other local authority
areas;
•
the changes that may be necessary in Council policy, practice, culture and
elsewhere to deliver the desired improved engagement outcomes.
This Session should use specific Case Studies in order to give practical
illustrations to the issues identified.
The Board is asked to consider at this session any emerging recommendations
from the inquiry to date.
5.4

Session Three – 20th November 2008
The purpose of this session is to consider:
• Any information requested from the last session.
• The Board’s draft inquiry report and recommendations.

Page 25

6.0

Witnesses

6.1

The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors to the Inquiry:
• Leeds Voice
• Faith Community organisation
• Connecting Communities/Leeds BME Network
• Volition, the Advocacy Network for people with Mental Health issues
• Individual resident/s who have participated in community engagement activity
• Leeds City Council’s Corporate Consultation Manager
• Environment and Neighbourhoods Officers, including: Area Management and
Chief Regeneration Officer
• Director of Adult Social Care
• Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) Performance
/Equalities/ LAA development etc
• Director of Children’s Services / Partnerships Manager

7.0

Monitoring Arrangements

7.1

Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of the final
inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the agreed
recommendations will be monitored.

7.2

The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed arrangements for
monitoring the implementation of the Board’s recommendations.

8.0

Measures of success

8.1

It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry has been
successful in making a difference to local people. Some measures of success may
be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry and can be included in these terms of
reference. Other measures of success may become apparent as the inquiry
progresses and discussions take place.

8.2

The Board will look to publish practical recommendations.

Page 26

Originator:
Tel:

Sue Wynne /
D Richmond
39 50440

Report of the Chief Regeneration Officer
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 25 September 2008
Subject: The Voluntary, Community Faith Sector supporting Council engagement
activity.
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity

ü

Community Cohesion

ü

Narrowing the Gap

ü

1.0

Purpose of the report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform the Scrutiny Board inquiry into the contribution
of the voluntary, community and faith sector (VCFS) to community engagement
activity to deliver the Council objectives.

1.2

The report provides summary background information that will inform the inquiry,
including an overview of:• the Council’s engagement obligations, performance and evidence requirements
• the corporate Community Engagement policy, processes and planned
developments
• examples of engagement with the VCFS to support strategy development, service
and areas based initiatives
• the opportunities and challenges to be addressed in working with the VCFS sector
to improve engagement practice.

2.0

The Council’s engagement obligations and performance requirements

2.1

Community engagement is an umbrella term that includes consultation, involvement,
community capacity building and similar activities designed to enhance citizens’ roles
in local decision making. Community engagement must include people with
disabilities, with different ethnic, cultural, faith or religious heritages, all genders, ages
and sexualities.

2.2

Community engagement is essential to improving services, shaping the future of the
city and the quality of life of its residents. It helps to unite local people and
Page 27

communities, builds citizenship and community pride. It helps the council and its
partners understand what communities want from our services.
2.3

The Council has a statutory responsibility to consult with our citizens, users and
groups and communities. This duty has been expanded to include our partner
agencies and work is ongoing to develop more localised ways of working with
communities. This work is enhanced by the VCFS which is well placed to articulate
community needs and priorities. The Council engages directly with VCFS
organizations and networks and forums facilitated by the VCFS. The Council also
engages with VCFS organisations as deliverers of services and community led
activities.

2.4

There are a number of national and local policy drivers which inform the Council’s
approach to engagement including the Government’s Empowerment White Paper, the
Leeds Strategic Plan and the Council Community Engagement policy, all of which
reflect the important role the VCFS has in articulating local needs, building the
capacity of communities to engage and influence decision-making and shaping and
delivering services.

2.5

The recently published Empowerment White Paper, ‘Communities in Control: Real
People, Real Power’ sets out new expectations and opportunities for Local
Government. These include:
• extending the duty to involve to partner organisations
• streamlining consultation and engagement with partners
• supporting and promoting volunteering opportunities
• improving access to information to support involvement
• creating opportunities to influence – e.g. participatory budgeting, establishing
neighbourhood, community or village councils
• incentives to encourage voting
• accountability through Scrutiny and public hearings
• the introduction of Comprehensive Area Assessments to test and evaluate the
quality of engagement and empowerment

2.6

In 2009, the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) replaces the current Corporate
Performance Assessment for measuring local authority performance and standards.
The new CAA includes clear and significant focus on community engagement and
specifically the equality aspects of engagement. Current guidance provided for the
new CAA indicates inspectors will explore and expect to see ‘how well councils
engage with, involve and empower local people including through the third sector’.

2.7

The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 incorporating the Local Area Agreement includes
the following improvement priorities and targets linked to engagement and
empowerment. These measures recognize the important role and contribution that the
VCFS plays in the life of the city and its residents. The indicators drawn from the
national indicator set are to be measured by the Place Survey. The first survey to
provide a baseline from which progress will be measured will take place in the autumn
2008.

Page 28

Strategic Outcomes
More inclusive, varied and
vibrant communities through
empowering people to
contribute to decision making
and delivering local services

Improved community
cohesion and integration
through meaningful
involvement and valuing
equality and diversity

Indicators
An increased number of local people
engaged in activities to meet
community needs and improve the
quality of life for local residents
An increase in the number of local
people that are empowered to have a
greater voice and influence over local
decision making and a greater role in
public service delivery
Enable a robust and vibrant voluntary,
community and faith sector to
facilitate community activity and
directly deliver services
An increased sense of belonging and
pride in local neighbourhoods that
help to build cohesive communities

NI6

NI4

NI7

NI1

Participation in
regular
volunteering
activity
% of people who
feel they can
influence
decisions in their
locality
Environment for a
thriving third
sector
% of people who
feel that they
belong to their
neighbourhood

3.0

Corporate Policy Framework on Community Engagement

3.1

The Council’s Community Engagement Policy and Toolkit was approved by Executive
Board in December 2006. The policy sets out the Council’s strategic approach to
engagement and consultation which consists of four key components:
•
a corporate Community Engagement Policy
•
a corporate Community Engagement Toolkit
•
a council-wide community engagement networking group
•
an on-line consultation portal and information database
These components are all linked and complement each other and form an overall
approach towards joined-up community engagement. The document can be viewed at
http://intranet.leeds.gov.uk/Interest_Areas/Corporate_communications/Consultation_.
aspx

3.2

The Council aims to achieve Level 4 of the Equality Standard for Local Government
by December 2008. The Equality Standard is an evidence based assessment
framework setting out expectations and benchmarks under a number of key headings:
Leadership, Impact Assessments, Monitoring, Consultation, Employment and
Procurement. The Standard overlaps with and sets challenges for the engagement
agenda. The Council will need to demonstrate that it is monitoring and can evidence
who it engages with, to ensure that all appropriate stakeholder communities are
involved. Equality is a key element of the new CAA framework. The inspection will
consider how well public services are meeting (and knowing) the needs of the diverse
groups within communities; and focus on whether groups and individuals that can be
subject to discrimination and prejudice receive equitable outcomes.

3.3

The Council’s Equality Team is developing a Corporate Equality Assembly and
Equality Hubs. These will provide opportunities to engage with a city-wide sounding
board for some equality strands. This will not be an appropriate engagement route in
all cases and other ways of engaging with diverse and minority communities may
need to be explored in specific geographical and thematic areas. Using voluntary,
community and faith organisations as facilitators and routes to some communities
may be appropriate but will need encouraging and supporting where services have no
experience or links.

3.4

Relationships between the Council and VCFS are embodied in the Compact for
Leeds. Launched in 2003, this document is a voluntary agreement to improve
Page 29

relations between public and voluntary, community and faith sector partners in Leeds.
It sets out a framework to facilitate better working and is built around the four key
principles of:
• Promoting equal partnerships
• Encouraging effective use of resources
• Recognising and valuing volunteering and community activity
• Improving the quality of communication, consultation and information exchange
The Council actively supports work with the sector to review and update the codes of
conduct contained within the agreement.
3.5

Within the VCFS sector in Leeds there are over 3,000 organisations and a large
number of these organisations support and facilitate community engagement both
formally and informally. A number of organisations provide a representative role at a
city-wide level engaging in work to support the development of city-wide plans and
policies, whilst others have a specific service, community of interest or neighbourhood
focus. The following sections aim to provide examples of these approaches.

4.0

Engagement with the VCFS to support strategic developments

4.1

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Heath Act set out a stronger role for
local government in leading their communities and bringing services together to
address such challenges working closely with their partners. The VCFS is a key
partner in this ‘place shaping’ role helping the Council to answer the question what
are the biggest challenges facing the city and what are we going to do about them.

4.2

The VCFS represent the views of service users and residents throughout the city in
local forums and bodies at strategic and key decision making levels in the city. Over
100 VCFS sector representatives participate in the partnership and strategy groups of
the Leeds Initiative, the city’s local strategic partnership. The development of the
Sustainable Community Strategy, the Vision for Leeds, and Leeds Strategic Plan
2008-11 including the development of the Local Area Agreement (LAA) could not
have been achieved without a robust VCFS framework that speaks for and represent
citizens and service users. The partnerships, both with and within the sector, have
been strengthened through the work to develop the current LAA supported by Leeds
Voice. The process enabled the VCFS to engage equally and consistently in the
design process resulting in the identification of the sector’s key contributions for each
of the new priorities and indicators.

4.3

The Narrowing the Gap Board of the Leeds Initiative has recognized the importance
to the City of maintaining a vibrant and thriving VCFS and has recently established a
new partnership group to support the sector, the VCFS High Level Strategy Group.
The group will be a vehicle for developing and securing a consensus approach to
policies, strategies and action which will enable the VCF sector to contribute to the
delivery of the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11. The Group will have a focus on the
service improvement priorities of community engagement, active citizenship and a
thriving VCF sector. The terms of reference and the outline work programme are
attached at appendix 1.

5.0

Engagement with the VCFS to support service development and
implementation

5.1

There is considerable engagement activity led by Council services taking place on a
daily basis. Engagement can be with individual citizens and or with and through
voluntary, community and faith sector groups to extend the reach and effectiveness of
Page 30

this activity. It would not be possible to detail all the engagement activity involving the
VCFS, therefore a sample of these activities have been provided at Appendix 2 using
examples provided by Children Services and Adult Social Services.
5.2

Children’s Services has worked with VCFS organisations to develop more creative
ways in which to engage with children and young people from different backgrounds
and communities across the city. The examples provided by Adult Social Services
demonstrate engagement activity from consultation with service users, involvement in
strategy and service development and redesign, through to involvement in decisionmaking to commission services.

6.0

Engagement with the VCFS to support Area based Initiatives

6.1

There are a range of engagement activities described at Appendix 3 that have been
employed to support the work of the Area Committees in South Leeds. These provide
an indication of the VCFS involvement in area based community engagement
activities. These include the VCFS brokering community engagement and influencing
service delivery at the local level; undertaking commissioned community engagement
activity; and contributing to Area Delivery Plan priorities and outcomes.

6.2

The review of Area Working considered by Executive Board in July 2008 set out the
need for Area Community Engagement Plans that will set out the planned
engagement activity for an area. This will include the production of a community
profile; a calendar of planned communication and engagement activity; and an annual
report will provide the Area Committees with an overview of the engagement activity
along with key outcomes delivered in their wards over the last year and the forward
plan for the year ahead. This planned approach provides an opportunity to consider
and plan for the involvement of VCFS organizations in the delivery of this activity.

7.0

The potential opportunities and challenges of working with the VCFS
organizations to enhance community engagement.

7.1

Working with the VCF sector to promote and deliver engagement activity is well
established in Leeds and the sector has a real role to play. Arrangements are in place
that involve the VCFS at a city-wide level with representation through Leeds Voice on
the Leeds Initiative, the local strategic partnership; at a service level there is a wide
range of partnership with service specific expertise; and at a locality level, each of the
area committees have varying mechanisms for engaging with the sector to reflect the
needs of their communities and skills of the local VCFS groups.

7.2

A key benefit of working with the VCFS to improve and enhance community
consultation and engagement is that VCFS groups are generally community based
and have direct contact with large numbers of local people, some of which focus on
those groups who can be ‘hard to reach’. The sector can offer a means for improving
the targeting of engagement and extending its reach. However, further work is
required in some thematic and geographical areas to map the available resource and
expertise to maximize its potential impact.

7.3

A number of VCFS groups either directly employ community development workers or
have developed within their organization skills and knowledge about the needs and
aspirations of particular communities of interest or place. These organizations are
often able to resource at short notice and for restricted periods, short term
engagement activity, which the council would find difficult.
Page 31

7.4

The fact that some VCFS organisations have a particular image and reputation in the
locality, can sometimes be harnessed to improve engagement. However, this can
present difficulties, if for example a particular group is perceived as working primarily
on behalf of one section of the community.

7.5

Potential difficulties in utilising the VCF sector can include concerns that the
introduction of a third party has the potential to cause confusion or anxiety on behalf
of members of the public, particularly if sensitive information is involved. The paucity
of groups in some areas may mean it is difficult to cover a particular geography and
organisations may overstretch their capacity. Other difficulties can arise from
differences in approach and ethos between groups and the council, and problems
relating to complexity and delay in commissioning groups.

7.6

The size, diversity and complexity of the VCFS in Leeds means that sometimes it is
difficult for service managers to identify which groups are best placed to support and
deliver engagement activity. The potential exists to improve and strengthen leadership
and collaborative arrangements within the sector to improve the service offer to the
Council and its partners and for Council service managers to use the skills and
knowledge of the sector to greater effect.

7.7

The Council and the VCFS have distinct but complimentary roles in engagement. The
potential conflict of interest for VCFS groups involved in representing both the views
of their clients and networks and managing their services and meeting organisational
needs must be recognised. The Council has a responsibility for engaging with all its
residents and stakeholders and for ensuring that the engagement activity meets its
objectives to inform service improvements.

7.8

The VCFS sector has been responding to a number of changes in the external
environment. This includes the ending of a number of external discretionary grant
programmes; a shift in the funding priorities of other programmes; and public sector
partners moving to a commissioning approach which can require a changed approach
from those seeking resources. The Council and its partners are also subject to
changing central government expectations and periodically review and revise their
priorities and arrangements to deliver on these. This can create both challenges in
terms of managing change but also new opportunities for agencies to work together.
To enable the meaningful involvement of the VCFS in delivering community
engagement during such periods of change, may require that more training and
support is made available to the sector.

8.0

Recommendation
Members of the Scrutiny Board are asked to note and comment on:• the community engagement duties of the Council and the related service
improvement priorities contained in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11,
• the summary of community engagement activities supported and delivered by VCFS
organisations at a city-wide, service and locality level
• the key opportunities and challenges to be addressed in working with VCFS
organisations to engage with communities.

Page 32

Appendix 1
VCFS High Level Partnership Group
Terms of Reference
1.

Role and purpose

The VCFS High Level Partnership Group will be a vehicle for developing and securing a
consensus approach to policies, strategies and action which will enable the VCF sector to
contribute to the delivery of the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11. The Group will have a focus
on the following service improvement priorities: Service Improvement Priority

Measure

• Enable a robust and vibrant voluntary , • NI7 Environment for a thriving third
community and faith sector to facilitate
sector
community activity and directly deliver
services
• An increased number of local people
• NI 6 Increased number of people
engaged in activities to meet
participating in regular volunteering
community needs and improve the
quality of life for local residents
• An increase in the number of people
• NI 4 Percentage of people who can feel
who feel they can influence decisions in
they can influence decisions in their
their locality
locality

2.

Responsibilities

Developing collaborative approaches to support and work with the VCFS organisations in the
City to enable the sector play a full and equal part in the delivery and review of the Leeds
Strategic Plan 2008-11
Improving the knowledge and understanding of the VCF Sector and the interface between
partner organisations and the sector
Sponsoring debate and discussion with all stakeholders on policy, operational and
resourcing issues that impact on the viability of the VCF sector
Contributing to and influencing the service planning and commissioning frameworks of the
Leeds Initiative strategy and partnership groups and partner organisations
To work collaboratively on the development of specific policies, strategies and programmes
to enable VCF organisations to contribute to identifying service needs, shaping interventions
and participating in service delivery and decision-making processes where appropriate
To monitor progress and evaluate the impact of interventions, capture learning and
disseminate good practice across service providers and the VCF sector
Responding on behalf of the Leeds Initiative to central Government and regional fora on third
sector policy initiatives

Page 33

3.
Frequency of meetings
Meetings will be held bi-monthly. A schedule of meetings for the year will be drawn up and
circulated.
4.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Membership:Sandie Keene - Director of Adult Social Services (Chair)
Ian Cameron - Director of Public Health
Rosemary Archer - Director of Children’s Services
Mark Milsom - Chief Superintendent, West Yorkshire Police
Richard Norton - VCFS Strategy Group
Richard Jackson – VCFS Infrastructure Consortium
Kathy Kudelnitzky – Leeds Initiative
Lelir Yeung - Head of Equality
Sue Wynne - Head of Policy & Planning - Regeneration
Lisa Wright - Director of Leeds Voice
Jane Stageman - Senior Policy Manager/ Leeds Area Agreement

Responsibilities of individual representatives are:•
To attend meetings regularly on an agreed basis
•
To consult with relevant staff / networks to inform their contribution to meetings
•
To report back through the relevant management structures in their respective
organisations
•
To share information with relevant staff and networks
5. Linkages
The Group will provide oversight and strategic direction to the VCFS Task Group to enable
the delivery of its work programme.
The Group will report periodically to the Narrowing the Gap Board on its achievements and
forward work programme
The Group will engage with partnership and strategy groups of the Leeds Initiative as
appropriate and in particular those with responsibility for commissioning services.
The Group will receive information and intelligence reports from the City Council’s VCFS
Resources Group to inform future strategy to support the delivery of Leeds Strategic Plan
Outcomes
6. Work programme priorities
Resourcing
• Establish a shared understanding of commissioning frameworks and approaches
employed by partners including the use of terminology relating to contracts, grants and
service level agreements.
• Support to increase the capacity of the sector to respond to commissioning opportunities
• Identify new resourcing opportunities to support VCF activity to deliver active citizenship,
community empowerment and public services to communities
• Identify opportunities for support other than financial e.g. joint working.
• Compact code of practice – review effectiveness and review in light of changes in
environment / infrastructure
Page 34

Active Citizenship
• Developing a directory of civic participation opportunities, training and support
• Supporting the recruitment and retention of volunteers
• Sustainable asset transfer and delivery of community benefits - development of policy /
option appraisal and risk assessment
• Compact code of practice – review effectiveness and requirement to update in light of
changes in environment / infrastructure
Community Empowerment
• Map existing key community engagement mechanisms and activities that will contribute
to the achievement of NI4
• Identify and disseminate best practice
• Identify new opportunities / challenges to be addressed to contribute to the achievement
of NI4
• Identify appropriate shared partnership engagement mechanisms
• Build a shared understanding of residents’ perceptions of public service delivery
To be reviewed periodically –6 monthly intervals minimum.

Page 35

Appendix 2
VCFS ENGAGEMENT IN SERVICE BASED ACTIVITY
Leeds City Council’s Children’s Services and Adult Services provide good examples of
effective Service led engagement, delivered in partnership with the voluntary, community
and faith sector.

Children’s Services
Children’s Services supports the work of Children Leeds, which has developed the Children
and Young People’s Participation Strategy 2007 in response to a number of initiatives and
policies that require organisations to involve children and young people. They include:
• Every Child Matters and the Children Act 2004
• National Service Framework for Children’s and Maternity Services 2004
• Youth Matters 2006.
The aims of the strategy are:
• To provide a framework for all organisations across the Children Leeds partnership to
assist them in involving children and young people in the design, delivery and review of
the services that affect them
• To provide a mechanism for establishing and embedding good participatory practice in
Leeds and
• To set out the range of activities underway in Leeds and the support available.
The voluntary, community and faith sector play key roles in developing and delivering the
strategy and supporting and enabling children and young people to take active roles in
developing and delivering strategy and services in Leeds e.g. Leeds Children and Young
People’s Plan 2006-2009 places a strong emphasis on developing services and strategies
with children, young people and families. A revised plan for 2009-14 is in development. All
partners involved in children’s services as well as children and young people themselves, will
be involved in shaping the plan.
There is an infrastructure which supports the development and implementation of the
CYPPS, it includes:
The Strategic Participation Group, which works alongside services to ensure that they
involve children and young people. Membership comprises representatives from various
statutory and voluntary organisations.
Leeds Participation Team, which is a forum of practitioners who come together to influence
and support the work of the strategic participation group. Many of the members are voluntary
sector organisations, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

BARCA
The Cupboard
The Project
Getaway Girls
The Market Place
Youth on Health
Youth Point

•
•

Young Sexual Health Action Group
National Children’s Homes

Public sector members include:
• Arts and Regeneration
• Education Leeds
• Leeds Careers
• Youth Service
Page 36

The Children and Young People’s Participation Strategy has led to the development of some
creative and effective approaches to engaging children and young people, examples include:
Youth Point, a voluntary sector member of the Leeds Participation Team, delivers a wide
range of services for young people in North West Leeds, including youth arts projects,
volunteering projects, information and support. Youth Point’s ‘Make it Happen’ project
supports young people to be involved in decision making. They provide young people with
information about the participation opportunities available to them such as steering group
meetings and youth forums and are supported to access those opportunities.
ROAR (Reach Out and Reconnect) – is a city wide partnership group for children and young
people to work at a strategic level in the planning and development of services for children
and young people. ROAR is not a fixed group, but a forum that involves many different
groups working with children and young people. ROAR is facilitated by The Project
(voluntary organisation).
Youth Offer: Breeze Youth Promise
Leeds Youth Council (LYC) was consulted in December 2006 about the general principles,
expectations and shape of the youth offer. They decided to call it the Breeze Youth Promise
and gave the council’s youth service a clear steer about what it should look like.
The youth service then consulted 400 service providers through Open Forums in March
2007 based on LYC's steer. It also held a multi agency seminar, attended by 40 people in
April 2007, where proposed entitlement statements were devised. The draft entitlement
statements were presented to LYC and to Reach Out And Reconnect (ROAR) groups of
young people to find out young people’s views. LYC and ROAR carried out consultation with
972 young people in summer 2007. This consultation resulted in changes to the entitlement
statements proposed by agencies in April.
LYC and ROAR produced a brilliant promotional Breeze Youth Offer DVD and this was
shown in numerous settings. For example it was presented to Scrutiny Board and was
shown twice in November at the switch on of the Christmas lights event.
LYC and ROAR have continued to work hard on the Breeze Youth Promise and have made
further changes which they believe make it a more deliverable and relevant youth offer.
Approximately 30 young people have sustained involvement in this.
LYC has merged two of its sub groups, Enjoy and Achieve and Economic Wellbeing, to form
a new sub group responsible long term for the Breeze Youth Promise.
The Breeze Youth Promise is finalised but the young people want it to be formally signed off
by LYC (very imminent) before it is officially launched. The next stage for the LYC sub group
is to agree a communication strategy.

Adult Social Care
In line with government priorities and strong local tradition, the engagement of the voluntary
and community sector plays a key role in the commissioning, design and delivery of
services; in promotion of personalised services; and in maintenance of quality. The sector is
also a key ally to local statutory organisations in connecting to those who are disadvantaged,
socially excluded, or reluctant to access formal statutory services. The overall focus is on
health and wellbeing as part of a whole system. New Joint Commissioning arrangements
are being set up in which the VCF sector will be fully represented.
Page 37

Adult Social Care is supporting engagement in a number of different ways:
Local Involvement Network (Leeds)
The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 brought an end to Patient
and Public Involvement Forums (there were three in Leeds) and the national Commission for
Patient and Public Involvement on 31st March 2008. The national budget was reassigned by
the Department of Health to enable Local Authorities (as required under the Act) to
commission an organisation to act as host for a new Local Involvement Network (LINk) in
their area. The LINk replaces local PPI forums and also extends to social care.
A procurement exercise has just been completed, led by Adult Social Care, to appoint the
host organisation which has involved representatives of the VCF sector as members of both
the Project Team and the Procurement Board. This was handled by the VCF sector with
great tact because local VCF organisations were potential or actual bidders.
The purpose of the LINk as described in the Act are to:
•
•
•

promote and support the involvement of people in commissioning, provision and
scrutiny of local care services ( “care services” refers to both health and social care)
enable local people to monitor and review the standard of local care services and
report on how they could be improved
obtain the views of local people about their experience of local care services and their
care needs.

The LINk will have powers to visit local health and social care service (with the exception of
social care for children) raise issues of concern in relation to health and social care services
with statutory organisations, and the right to make representation directly to Scrutiny Board.
An especial responsibility of the LINk is to reach people whose voices are seldom heard.
The LINk includes both individuals and VCF organizations; membership / participation are
flexible and subject to local decisions about governance.
Local Authorities were charged with making LINk transitional arrangements to ensure that
section 221 activities (Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007) are
carried out in the interim period between the dis-establishment of the PPI Forums and the
establishment of the LINk. Adult Social Care supported by the local NHS and VCF sector
established a LINk Preparatory Group from 1st April which has been meeting regularly, with
commissioned independent support from the Leeds Older People’s Forum.
A Host organisation for Leeds was appointed at the beginning of September (the Shaw
Trust) and it is commencing work to establish the LINk on a more formal basis.
It is likely, as the LINk develops, that it will become the source for patient, service user and
carer representation on health and social care matters. However VCF representation is
likely still to be organised separately, for example through Leeds VOICE.
Specialised Involvement Networks
Adult Social Care, working with Leeds PCT and others where appropriate, supports the
Leeds Older People’s Forum and the Leeds Advocacy Network. It also contributes to the
Leeds VOICE Health Forum and the Community Health Development Network.

Page 38

Organisations funded by Adult Social Care to focus on Community Engagement
Adult Social Care Services with the Leeds PCT provide funding to Leeds Involvement
Project (a voluntary sector organisation) to develop engagement and involvement with the
Service User and Carer communities. Using this funding, Leeds Involvement Project
supportsand maintains a number of Service User and Carer led forums that includes the
Alliance of Service User and Carers, Black and Minority Ethnic Disabled People’s
Consultation Group and the Equipment Users Advisory Group. Some groups (e.g. the
Alliance of Service User and Carers also receive direct joint funding from Adult Social Care
and the PCT).
Additionally, funding is provided through the Leeds Strategic Partnership and Development
Team to support three reference groups, the Disability Reference Group, the Older People’s
Reference Group and the Black and Minority Ethnic Disabled People’s Consultation Group.
The Reference Groups and the Forums supported by Leeds Involvement Project are used by
Adult Social Care Services, amongst other statutory organisations, to support their
engagement and involvement with Service Users and Carers. Additionally, the Forums as
they are led by Service Users and Carers, raise their own issues of concern with Council
employees and Elected Members.
Examples of their involvement as representatives of these groups are as follows:
• A representative of the Alliance of Service Users and Carers sits on Scrutiny Board
(Social Care)
• The Alliance of Service Users and Carers is working with Adult Social Care
Commissioning Services and Independent Sector Providers on the quality of service
provision – this is a long term arrangement.
• Representatives from each of the Reference Groups sit on the Leeds Strategic
Partnership and Development Boards.
• Representatives of the Equipment Users Advisory Groups sits on the Partnership Board
• A representative of the Alliance of Service Users and Carers Chairs the LINk (Local
Involvement Network) Preparatory Group.
Adult Social Care also contributes funding to local community health projects such as South
Leeds Health for All and Women’s Health Matters which have engagement as one of their
primary objectives. Local Healthy Living Centres have a similar role.
Mental Health
Adult Social Care supports Volition, which is an alliance of voluntary sector organisations
that either provide mental health services for or work with people who have mental health
needs. It is part of Volition’s remit to promote the contribution of the voluntary sector in
strategic planning and the development of services. Volition has over 60 members from all
areas of the voluntary sector providing services to people in Leeds.
The Independent Disability Council (Leeds)
Adult Social Care Services, together with the Corporate Equality Unit have provided support
to the development of the Independent Disability Council (Leeds). The IDC(Leeds) is an
organisation of disabled people who are committed to the positive and meaningful
involvement of disabled people in the development and delivery of public services. It was
launched in July 2008 with the intention of seeking to represent the disabled people of Leeds
and Organisations of disabled people through peer led representation.
Page 39

Service re-design
Adult Social Care services is committed to the involvement of VCF organisations in the redesign of services. The Adult Social Care Business Plan 2008/09 states: “Our vision
represents a broad approach to working with partners across the Council, the PCT, and the
independent, voluntary, community and faith sectors to ensure the best use of all our
resources to improve the wellbeing of the population of Leeds.”
All projects and programmes must identify key stakeholders, including VCF organisations,
and in many instances, organisations are represented on Project and Programme Boards.

Supporting Wellbeing
Adult Social Care is directed towards the 7 Health and Wellbeing outcomes promoted by
Government Green and White Papers:
• improved health and emotional well-being;
• improved quality of life;
• making a positive contribution;
• choice and control;
• freedom from discrimination;
• economic well-being; and
• personal dignity.
These objectives cannot be achieved without the engagement of individuals and community
groupings at all stages. They also depend not just on the availability of services but more
general community wellbeing. A recent report of the Local Wellbeing Project confirms that
wellbeing is enhanced through processes of neighbourhood and community engagement /
empowerment through
•
•
•

providing greater opportunities for residents to influence decisions affecting their
neighbourhoods
facilitating regular contact between neighbours
helping residents gain the confidence to exercise control

Adult Social Care recognises its role in promoting wellbeing in this way and sees the
contribution of the VCF sector as being absolutely crucial.

Page 40

Appendix 3

VCFS Involvement in Area Committee Engagement Activity
This appendix presents examples of the way in which area committees in South Leeds have
worked with VCF sector organisations to enhance community engagement activity and
improve the delivery of services which seek to take advantage of the extensive history that
some VCF sector organisations have of positive community relationships. These cover 3
aspects of the relationship of the Area Committees and the VCF sector:• The role that the VCF sector plays in brokering community engagement and
influencing services.
• The role of the VCF sector in delivering commissioned services.
• The role of the VCF sector in delivering services which contribute to area delivery plan
outcomes.
The VCF sector in South Leeds
South Leeds has an extensive array of VCF sector organisations. These are distributed
throughout the whole area, but exist in either greater numbers, or where they cover the
whole area, are more active in the less affluent inner city areas. Many of these organisations,
particularly in the faith sector have been in existence for long periods of time, but there are
also examples of voluntary based organisations that have been successfully delivering
services for tens of years.
This history has been influenced by the relative deprivation of parts of South Leeds and the
potential to attract funding. Beeston Hill and Holbeck for example has over the last ten years
benefited greatly from funding streams such as the Single Regeneration Budget,
Neighbourhood Renewal Funding and European funding. Such funding streams have
increased the financial support available for those organisations who are delivering
outcomes which accord with the regeneration priorities inherent in the funds objectives.
The role of the VCF sector in brokering community engagement and influencing
services.
The nature of the VCF sector is both diverse and disparate, and whilst much collaboration
takes place there are also elements of competition between organisations. Because of these
factors LCC frequently relies on support from VCF umbrella organisations such as Leeds
Voice and Voluntary Action Leeds. These organisations have in the past been able to attract
various forms of funding to underpin the important role that they play in coordinating,
supporting and helping to progress and sustain organisations within the sector. However
over the last couple of years such funding has become increasingly scarce.
To ensure that the VCF sector is able to influence and shape policy and planning, Leeds
Voice has developed the South Leeds Super Forum. The forum membership is open to all
VCF sector organisations operating in South Leeds, and as such has the potential to draw
upon and include a large number of local people from a great variety of different
backgrounds and interests. Amongst other things the Super Forum elected representatives
on to the board and sub groups of the South Leeds District Partnership. The forum met in
advance of the meetings of the former District Partnership Board and was able to consult
with the membership of individual organisations on the content of Board papers. In this
manner the VCF sector was able to contribute in a coordinated manner to the discussions at
the Board. With the demise of the District Partnership board the Super Forum will still meet,
and coordinate input into the various thematic partnerships that exist in the area.
Page 41

As changes take place in the ways in which area committees undertake community
consultation it is anticipated that the VCF sector will continue to play a key role in supporting
the committees to undertake engagement. Several area committees are making plans to put
in place a systematic approach to consulting their communities on the achievement of the
Leeds Strategic Plan (LSP) priorities, so far as they are relevant to the area committee area.
In South Leeds, this will take the form of a meeting held in advance of the area committee,
focusing on one of the key themes from the LSP. The first of these events will take place in
September at the Inner South Leeds Area Committee and be led by Children’s Services. It is
hoped that this will attract a wide audience from the local population and the VCF sector will
be supporting both the content of the event and attempts to attract the audience. Whilst we
will need to review the effectiveness of this as an approach as we go along, at this point it is
intended to hold similar events, albeit with different themes before each of the South Area
Committee meetings. This will enable the committees to have an overview of each of the
themes of the LSP. On the whole VCF sector organisations involved in this form of activity
receive no specific payment from the Area Committees.
In addition to such ongoing activities, The VCF sector also play an important role in assisting
with time limited or service specific engagement activity. There are numerous examples of
this, however the most ambitious scheme to take place in South Leeds over recent years
involved Leeds Voice undertaking participatory appraisal research in 2006. This programme
of consultation was designed to influence the priorities and spending profile for the Intensive
Neighbourhood Management (INM) programme delivered as part of the Safer Stronger
Communities Fund Programme. Local people were trained to lead the consultation and they
planned and delivered the project with the assistance of a team of staff from Leeds Voice.
The team stood at bus stops, outside shops and schools and many other places to talk to
local residents and hear their views. This approach involved over 1,000 people, a full
evaluation report was written by Voice which helped to determine the priorities and projects
that formed the INM programme which has subsequently been implemented over the last 2
years. The participatory appraisal programme received a national award for good practice in
relation to adult learning.
The role of the VCF sector in delivering commissioned services.
The South Leeds Area Committees have taken an approach to the use of their well being
funding which seeks to commission services in accordance with the priorities identified in
their Area Delivery Plans. Such priorities are at least in part based upon a local interpretation
of the LSP. Some of these services, for example the mobile youth bus commissioned from St
Luke’s Cares, and the ‘I Love South Leeds’ Festival commissioned from Health for All, may
be designed to promote engagement amongst other priority outcomes, in these examples
reducing anti social behaviour and promoting cohesion. However, there are other examples
of the VCF sector delivering commissioned services which primarily focus on engagement
activity. For example, South Leeds Area Committees have since 2005, developed small
scale action plans designed to improve the most problematical neighbourhoods
(Neighbourhood Improvement Plans commonly known as ‘nips’). Community development
activity takes place, to engage the local community as fully as possible in this work, prior,
during and following the conclusion of the nip. In 2006, both South Area Committees agreed
funding for one ‘Priority Neighbourhood Development Worker’ post in each area. Health for
All were commissioned to manage the project and employ the workers. The project has
been very successful and has since secured 2 further years of funding from the Area
Committees. The Development Workers have played a crucial role in the successful
implementation of several NIPs as well as supporting 'in bloom' groups, and they provide a
useful link between the residents of Leeds, the Council in general and in particular the Area
Committees.
Page 42

The role of the VCF sector in delivering services which contribute to ADP outcomes
Many VCF sector organisations deliver services which accord with stated area committee
priorities or contribute to the achievement of ADP outcomes, without recourse to well-being
support. The most frequent example of this probably relates to activities for young people.
Supporting the delivery of services to young people, with the aim of promoting community
cohesion, and diversion from anti-social behaviour, has been a consistent priority for South
Leeds Area Committees. Indeed a scrutiny enquiry in 2006 found that approximately 30% of
the overall revenue allocation to the 10 Area Committees was spent on such activity, and
many community consultation exercises frequently cite services for young people as being a
key priority.
In South Leeds, several organisations provide such services. One of these is the Hamara
Healthy Living Centre, which provides traditional open access youth clubs two nights per
week, sports activity aimed at promoting cohesion by linking up young people in LS11 and
LS10, whilst encouraging Asians youths to become involved in rugby. They also run holiday
clubs, junior gym based training, accredited coaching awards courses, information advice
and guidance sessions, and focused cohesion work. Whilst Hamara, clearly have their own
mechanisms for capturing these outcomes and there is some links with the statutory youth
service there is no clear overall process for capturing the detail of such outcomes. Hence it
is difficult to be entirely prescriptive in describing (to central government for example) the
extent of such activity.

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44

Agenda Item 9
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:247 4557

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 25th July 2008
Subject: Progress Report on the Board’s Working Groups
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0

Introduction

1.1

The Scrutiny Board has established a Skills Working Group, a Small Businesses
Working Group and a University Fees Working Group to consider the appropriateness
of bringing forward draft terms of reference for consideration by the Board with a view
to undertaking inquiries on these issues.

2.0

Skills Working Group

2.1

The Skills Working Group met on the 3rd July and a note of that meeting was reported
to the Board in July 2008. A copy of the note is attached for ease of reference. The
Board agreed to undertake an inquiry on this issue.

2.2

Draft terms of reference for this inquiry have now been prepared and will be
considered by the Skills Working Group on 22nd September 2008. If they are agreed
by the Working Group the terms of reference will be presented to today’s meeting for
consideration.

2.3

The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules require that, before embarking on an inquiry, the
Board seeks and considers the views of the relevant Directors and Executive
Members. These views will need to be taken into account in finalising the terms of
reference.

2.4

This particular inquiry will involve the Directors of City Development and Environment
and Neighbourhoods and the relevant Executive Board Members with portfolio
responsibility for these services. The relevant Directors and Executive Members have
been invited to comment on these terms of reference before the meeting today.

2.5

Any comments that are received will be reported at the Board meeting today.
Page 45

2.6

Councillor J Lewis has been invited to attend the next meeting of the Working Group
when it considers the draft terms of reference.

3.0

Small Businesses Working Group

3.1

The Small Business Working Group met on the 18th July 2008 and a note of that
meeting was circulated to Members of the Board.

3.2

The Working Group asked for a fact sheet on this matter to be prepared by the City
Development department for submission to the Group to assist them in their
deliberations. This fact sheet is currently being prepared and will be submitted to the
Working Group in September 2008.

4.0

University Fees Working Group

4.1

The Board at the last meeting considered a request for scrutiny from representatives
of the University Unions concerning University Fees. It was agreed to establish a
Working Group to consider this matter further with representatives from the
Universities and the University Unions.

4.2

It has not been possible to get all the parties involved to agree a date for this meeting
until the 17th October 2008 at 2pm in committee room 3, Civic Hall.

5.0

Recommendations

5.1

The Board is asked to
(i)

note progress to date with regard to these Working Groups.

(ii)

consider and approve terms of reference proposed by the Board’s
Working Group for an inquiry into skills.

Background Papers
There are no background papers not attached to this report

Page 46

Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships)
Skills Working Group
Meeting held on 3rd July 2008
Present:
Councillor Sue Bentley (Chair)
Councillor Geoff Driver
Councillor Lucinda Yeadon
Others in Attendance:
Robert Norreys, Head of Regional Policy, Executive Support
Melanie Taylor, Projects Officer, Executive Support
Dylan Griffiths, Project Manager (Policy), Executive Support
Martin Dean, Deputy Chief Executive, Leeds Initiative
Richard Mills, Principal Scrutiny Adviser, Democratic Services
1.0

Introduction

1.1

It was reported that Scrutiny Board (City & Regional Partnerships) at its meeting on
23rd June 2008 had agreed to establish a Skills Working Group to look at establishing
an inquiry on skills and to draw up suitable terms of reference for consideration by the
Board.

1.2

The Board wanted to undertake an inquiry that would add value to the work being
carried out by a range of agencies and partners to improve the skills of our working
population.

1.3

The Working Group consisted of Councillors Bentley, Driver and Yeadon.
Councillor James Lewis had also expressed an interest in being a member of this
Working Group at the June Board meeting.

2.0

Issues Discussed

2.1

It was reported that MAAs (multi area agreements) are being developed at a
city regional and / or sub-regional level but not regionally and will bring together key
partners in flexible arrangements to tackle issues that are best addressed in
partnership, such as skills deficits, housing market imbalances, transport links and
other infrastructure projects. The MAA is also about agreeing a new relationship with
government departments.

2.2

Leeds City Region MAA is around skills and transport and officers reported that the
agreement is due to be signed shortly and was designed to give teeth to the city
regional and place-shaping agenda, by providing the framework for more effective
leadership across sectors and geographic and organisational boundaries.

2.3

A number of skills issues were discussed and commented upon including:
• the role of the Learning and Skills Council as the lead agency.
• the fact that the Council is a relatively minor partner.
• the organisations responsible for children up to 19 years and beyond
• the fact that often investment in skills is almost invisible.
• how to improve our links at a city, area and regional level and the current
sensitivity around the skills agenda at this time.
• role of colleges and employers in delivering improved skills to the labour
market.
• 8,000 young people leave school
and colleges in Leeds each year and join
Page 47

•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
3.0

its workforce of some 450,000. It required a great deal of effort to improve
skill levels by 1% as students leaving with level 2 & 3 qualifications.
except as an employer the Council is far removed from improving skills.
the various agencies involved in this matter including the Learning and
Skills Council, Sector Skills Council, Chamber of Commerce, different
colleges, private providers, national brokers and the Government’s choice
agenda “Train to Gain”.
issues around worklessness and skills.
migrant workers.
overlap of the Council’s role and the 3rd age.
end of the Learning and Skills Council in 2011.
future responsibility for 16 -19year olds and Every Child Matters.
the likely establishment of a government quango and the likelihood of
Leeds obtaining a contract that would contribute to the making of a more
coherent skills plan.
the agenda for improved economic performance.

Issues Raised by Members
After further discussion Members identified the following specific areas of concern,
any one of which, could be suitable for a Scrutiny Board inquiry:
•

the need to identify who are making the key decisions on skills and training,
where is the democratic input, what threatens our ability to make choices as
to where the funding comes from, are we narrowing the gap or is it getting
wider, the future of FE in Leeds and why are 3 colleges merging not 5 and
who decided this? how successful has this process been and what are the
measures in place to determine whether we are succeeding or not given our
limited involvement?

•

the need to consider the responsibilities employers have in identifying the
skills it requires in the short, medium and long term. Members commented
that with some notable exceptions employers had not been very successful
in this area and wanted to explore what the Government’s “Train To Gain”
agenda would contribute to this and the role the organisations like the
Chamber of Commerce play, if any, in making a positive contribution to the
skills agenda?

•

the fact that transport is a major and fundamental issue to the successful
delivery of improving the skills of its workforce.

•

the Multi Area Agreement (MAA) for transport and skills in the Leeds City
Region.

4.0

Recommendations of the Member Working Group

4.1

The Working Group asked that:
(i)
suitable terms of reference be prepared for an inquiry that looks at the Multi
Area Agreement (MAA) for transport and skills in the Leeds City Region and
also the future of FE in Leeds.
(ii)
that the draft terms of reference be submitted to the Working Group prior to
them being considered by Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships).
(iii)
a note of today’s meeting be submitted to Scrutiny Board (City and Regional
Partnerships) on 21st July 2008.

Page 48

Agenda Item 10
Originator:

Richard Mills

Tel:247 4557
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships)
Date: 25th September 2008
Subject: Current Work Programme
Electoral Wards Affected: All

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Narrowing the Gap

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Appendix 1 to this report provides Members with a copy of the Board’s current
Work Programme.

1.2

Appendix 2 is the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1st
September to 31st December 2008.

1.3

Appendix 3 provides Members of the Board with the latest Executive Board minutes

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Board is requested to:
(i)

Determine from these documents whether there are any additional items the
Board would wish to add to its Work Programme.

(ii)

Receive and make any changes to the attached Work Programme following
decisions made at today’s meeting.

Background Papers
There are no background papers
Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50

Page 51

Description

Notes

To consider a progress report
following the establishment of a
number of working groups by the
Board

Working Groups

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

To consider a report of the Director
of Environment and Neighbourhoods

Session 1 Voluntary Community &
Faith Sector

The Board established the Skills
Working Group, University Fees
Working Group and the Small
Businesses Working Group in July

The Board included this in its work
programme at the July meeting

Meeting date – 25th September 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 16th September 2008
Regional Governance Arrangements The Board asked for a report on
The Board in July heard from Cllr A
Regional Governance Arrangements Carter, the Chief Executive and
in respect of our major partners and Directors of City Development and
our political representation
Neighbourhoods and Housing on
regional issues. The Board asked for
a paper setting out Governance of
Partnerships and democratic
involvement

Item

B

RP / DP

RP/B

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (SEPTEMBER) 2008
APPENDIX 1

Page 52

Notes

Deadline for receipt of Reports 14th October 2008
To consider a report of the Director
The Board included this in its work
of Environment and Neighbourhoods programme at the July meeting
on good practice in Leeds and other
areas and hear from witnesses from
the VCFS and use specific case
studies

Description

To hear from the Chief Executive on
work being undertaken to Narrow the
Gap through our partner
organisations

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Invitation to the Chief Executive and
Chair of the Leeds Initiative
Narrowing the Gap Executive

The Board in June 2008 agreed that
it would be appropriate to monitor
progress through the submission of
a quarterly or half yearly report to
this Board and from our partners on
their concerns & successes

Meeting date – 20th November 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 11th November 2008
Session 3 Voluntary Community
To consider information requested at The Board included this in its work
Faith Sector
the last Board meeting and to
programme at the July meeting
consider the Board’s draft inquiry
report and recommendations

Meeting date – 23rd October 2008
Session 2 Voluntary Community &
Faith Sector

Item

PM

RP / DP

RP / DP

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (SEPTEMBER) 2008
APPENDIX 1

Page 53

Description

Notes

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

To approve the Board’s contribution
to the Scrutiny Boards Annual
Report 2008/09.

Deadline for receipt of Reports February 2009

Meeting date – 26th March 2009

Meeting date – April 2009
Annual Report

Deadline for receipt of Reports 17th February 2009

Deadline for receipt of Reports 6th January 2009
To receive an Annual Report on
At the Board meeting in June 2008
Performance against the Leeds
officers recommended that this
Strategic Plan
Board was appropriately placed to
take an overview of this document

Meeting date – 26th February 2009

Meeting date – 15th January 2009
Annual Report on Performance
against the Leeds Strategic Plan

Meeting date – 17th December 2008
Deadline for receipt of Reports 8th December 2008
Tracking Recommendations
To consider a report on progress in
implementing the Board’s
recommendations to date.

Item

MSR

MSR

Type of
item

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (SEPTEMBER) 2008
APPENDIX 1

Page 54

Councillors Bentley, Driver,
Yeadon and J Lewis

Skills

Progress update

22nd
September
2008

Date of
next
meeting
September
to be
confirmed

Attempts to hold a meeting of this working group in
17th
September have proved to be impossible due to the
October
unavailability of the necessary participants. The
2008
th
meeting has now been confirmed as the 17 October
2008 at 2pm in Committee Room 3

Meeting held on 3rd July 2008. Discussed with
officers and Leeds Initiative possible areas for an
inquiry and agreed that draft terms of reference be
drawn up on the MAA/FE. Draft terms of reference
have now been prepared and a meeting of the
working group arranged for 22nd September.

Meeting held on 18th July to discuss possible terms
of reference for an inquiry on small businesses. It
was agreed that a fact sheet be prepared by the City
Development department on this issue and that it be
submitted to a meeting of the working group in
September 2008

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Councillors Bentley, Kendal, J
Lewis, Atha and Yeadon

Councillors Bentley, Atha, Kendal

Small Businesses

University Fees

Membership

Working group

Working Groups

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (SEPTEMBER) 2008
APPENDIX 1

Page 55

Key:
CCFA / RFS – Community call for action / request for scrutiny
RP – Review of existing policy
DP – Development of new policy
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations
PM – Performance management
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny)
SC – Statutory consultation
CI – Call in

Scrutiny Arrangements at a regional level

The relationship between Local Government Yorkshire and Humber, Government Office for Yorkshire and the
Humber, the RDAs, Yorkshire Forward and the Regional Minister

Governance of partnerships, scrutiny and democratic involvement

The Transport Bill

Outstanding Issues Discussed by the Board

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME (SEPTEMBER) 2008
APPENDIX 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

Page 57

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Chief Highways
Officer

Decision Maker

Contract Extension
Chief Officer
To permit the extension of
Environmental
Waste Disposal contract for Services
a further 18 months until
March 2010.

Contract for Intensive 7
Day Family Support
Award of contract

Middleton Sissons 20mph
zone
Permission to construct the
scheme and implement a
20mph Zone

Key Decisions

1/9/08

1/9/08

1/9/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Client Department

Internal, and external
consultation with
Members, Emergency
Services and Metro
has taken place.
Public consultation is
ongoing.

Proposed
Consultation

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
For the period 1 September 2008 to 31 December 2008

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Contract Extension Report

Contract Award Report

None.

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of Children's
Services

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Appendix 2

Page 58

Director of
Resources

Chief Highways
Officer

Decision Maker

Contract Extension
Chief Officer
To permit the extension to
Environmental
the Wood and Wood Based Services
Materials contract to 12
months.

Financial Management
Restructure
Approval of the Restructure
of the Authority wide
Financial Management
function.

Transfer of responsibility
for maintenance of the A63
(Former A1), near
Ledsham, Trunk Road from
the Highways agency to
Leeds City Council
Approval to remove Leeds
City Council’s objection to
the detrunking order and
subject to the order
proceeding to accept
responsibility for
maintenance.

Key Decisions

1/9/08

1/9/08

1/9/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Extensive consultation
with Unions and other
stakeholders including
staff planned from late
June 2008.

None

Proposed
Consultation

Contract Extension Report

Chief Officer Delegated
Decision Report

Report to Joint Highways
Technical Board

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of Resources

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 59

Director of
Resources

1/9/08

1/9/08

Compulsory Purchase
Order (Parent Scheme)
Authority to spend from
Director of Resources

Director of
Resources

RHB 2008-11 Programme
Injection of external grant
funding from Director of
Resources

1/9/08

1/9/08

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

ESF Youth
Responsiveness Fund
Manager
Contract Acceptance

Expected
Date of
Decision

Extension of the
Chief Officer
Commingled Materials
Environmental
Recycling Contract
Services
Permission to extend the
Commingled Materials
Recycling contract for 2
years until November 2010.

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

RHB Project Board

RHB Programme
Board

CPU, JCPC

Proposed
Consultation

Design and Cost Report

Contract Extension Report

Design and Cost Report

None.

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Resources

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of Resources

Director of Children's
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 60

At this stage it is not
determined what these are
but as action plans are
progressed it is expected
that there will be a range of
changes to resourcing to
ensure achievement of
targets. There will be a
series of reports as this is
developed.

Transforming Social Care
In response to the
government agenda
“Transforming Social Care”
(DoH LA Circular (DH)
(2008)1) there will need to
be a variety of changes to
staffing arrangements
predominantly within Adult
Social Care.

Key Decisions

Director of Adult
Social Services,
Director of
Resources

Decision Maker

1/9/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

As a minimum the
Local Government Circular
Executive Board
LAC (DH) (2008)
member, Staff and
Trade Unions.
However a
consultation plan will
be developed to
ensure all
stakeholders are
consulted and
informed appropriately.

Proposed
Consultation

Director of Adult Social
Services, Director of
Resources

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 61

Director of Adult
Social Services

Chief Officer Children and Young
People's Care

Chief Officer (HR)

Family Support and
Assessment Services
(NCH)
Delegated decision
required to enter into the
first of two twelve month
extension periods under
the existing contract.

Restructure of Jobs and
Skills Service
(Environments and
Neighbourhoods)
To approve new structure
proposals for the Jobs and
Skills service, in line with
key policy influences and
current contractual and
funding arrangements.

Decision Maker

Extension of
Neighbourhood Network
Scheme Contracts
Approval to take up the
option to extend existing
contracts for the
Neighbourhood Network
Schemes for a further year
to 31st March 2010.

Key Decisions

1/9/08

1/9/08

1/9/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

TU consultation from
Feb 08, ongoing work
with TUs during
implementation
proposals. Formal staff
consultation April to
August 08, Member
consultation.

None

The issue has been
discussed with Review
Project Team, Adult
Commissioning Board
and Scheme’s Coordinators at a recent
workshop.

Proposed
Consultation

Delegated Decision Panel
Report

Report

Report

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of Children's
Services

Director of Adult Social
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 62

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Request to waive contract
procedure rule 13 and
enter into a Supporting
People contract with Adult
Social Care for
Neighbourhood Networks
Authorisation to waive
contract procedure rule 13
and enter into a Supporting
People contract with Adult
Social Care for
Neighbourhood Networks.

Roundhay Mansion
Approval of a Preferred
and Reserve Bidder for the
tenancy of the Roundhay
Mansion.

Safer Leeds
Partnership

Decision Maker

4 Contracts to cover a
Community Drug
Treatment Service and a
Drug Rehabilitation
Requirement Care Coordination Service
To award the contracts.

Key Decisions

2/9/08

1/9/08

1/9/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Executive Member for
Leisure and other
Executive Board
Members

N/A

Undertaken with
Service Users,
Providers,
Stakeholders

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Report to Delegated
Decision Panel

Contract award report

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 63

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Children's Services update
and framework for the next
Children and Young
Peoples Plan
To accept the update and
support the framework for
producing the 2009
Children and Young
Peoples Plan

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Leeds International Pool
Lisbon Street Leeds 1
To consider terms relating
to the sale of the Leeds
International Pool.

Disabled Facilities Grant
2008/09
Injection and authority to
spend from Executive
Board

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Decision Maker

Street Design Guide
Approval of Supplementary
Planning Document

Key Decisions

2/9/08

2/9/08

2/9/08

2/9/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods,
senior officers
(various) and Director
of Resources

Members of the
Council

Already carried out

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Children's
Services

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of City
Development

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 64

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Children's Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Central
and Corporate)

A draft vision for the
Council's Leisure Centres
and proposals for future
provision
To agree the Vision for the
Council’s Leisure Centres
and draft proposals for
future provision, subject to
public consultation.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Proposed Closure of a
Children's Home
That Iveson Approach
Children’s Home is closed
and that the savings made
are used to extend the
range of foster care
placements available to
meet the needs of young
people with more complex
needs.

Placement Strategy for
Looked After Children
Acceptance of the Strategy

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

2/9/08

2/9/08

2/9/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Executive Board
members followed by
a public consultation
exercise on the draft
proposals presented

Partner agencies e.g.
PCT, Education Leeds

Residents, Social
Workers, Independent
Reviewing Officer,
Staff and Trade Union
representatives

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of Children's
Services

Director of Children's
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 65

Director of Adult
Social Services

Director of
Resources

Corporate Property
Management Repairs and
Maintenance Contract
Arrangements
Approval of proposed
contract and partnership
arrangements for the
provision of maintenance
and repairs work to Council
buildings.

Chief Officer (HR)

Decision Maker

Temporary Social Care
Staff Contract
To extend the current
contract for the supply of
temporary social care staff.

Restructure of Waste
including former City
Services Performance
Management Team
(Environments and
Neighbourhoods)
To approve the new
structure proposals in order
to deliver the waste
solution programme.

Key Decisions

30/9/08

25/9/08

5/9/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Extensive consultation
is taking place through
the Repairs and
Maintenance Contract
Review Group which
includes all key
stakeholders

None

TU and staff
consultation between
the period 8- 22
August 2008.

Proposed
Consultation

Delegated decision report

Extension Report to the
Director of Adult Social
Services

Delegated Decision Panel
Report

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of Resources

Director of Adult Social
Services

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 66

Request to enter into a
Service Level Agreement
with Adult Social Care for
the Provision of Supporting
People Services for People
with Learning Disabilities
Approval to enter into
Supporting People Service
Level Agreement with
Leeds City Council, Adult
Social Care Directorate for
a period of 18+6 months.

Request to enter into a
Service Level Agreement
with Adult Social Care for
the Provision of Supporting
People Services for People
with Learning Disabilities
Approval to enter into
Supporting People Service
Level Agreement with
Leeds City Council, Adult
Social Care Directorate for
a period of 3 + 1 years.

Key Decisions

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Decision Maker

1/10/08

1/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

N/A

N/A

Proposed
Consultation

Report and Options
Appraisal for the Delegated
Decision Panel

Report and Options
Appraisal for the Delegated
Decision Panel

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 67

Pudsey Bus Station
Redevelopment
Approval to construct the
highway works associated
with the redevelopment of
Pudsey Bus Station

Review of the Council's
lettings policy
Approval of the revised
Lettings Policy. The lettings
policy is reviewed as part
of a continuous process
improvement, as a result of
consultation with
stakeholders including
Arms Length Management
Organisations, Registered
Social Landlords, voluntary
sector agencies and
customers.

Key Decisions

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Decision Maker

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

As this is a joint
LCC/Metro scheme,
joint consultation is
ongoing

Customers waiting to
be rehoused, Leeds
City Council tenants,
Arms Length
Management
Organisations, Belle
Isle Tenant
Management
Organisation,
Registered Social
Landlords, Leeds
Tenants’ Federation,
Legal Services,
Voluntary agencies

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 68

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Central
and Corporate)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

A653 Dewsbury Road Bus
Priority Measures, Ring
Road Beeston Park Bus
Land
Permission to construct the
scheme, subject to
satisfactory funding
arrangements being in
place on return of tenders.
The works are required to
provide a quality bus
corridor identified in the
LTP and are an intrinsic
part of the Yorkshire Bus
Initiative.

Decision Maker

Leeds by Example:
Developing a Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy
Approve the vision and
development of a
Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy.

Key Decisions

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Initial Member
consultation has taken
place.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Deputy Chief
Executive

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 69

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Managing Pupil Numbers
at Swallow Hill Community
College
Approval of the strategy
proposed to manage the
excess in pupil numbers in
the existing Wortley High
School building, and
approval of the capital
injection of £1.19m to meet
the cost of required
refurbishment and ICT
works.

Sustainable Education
Travel Strategy
To note the contents of the
report and proposed
Sustainable Education
Travel Strategy and
associated Action Plan for
2008-09 and to approve
the Sustainable Education
Travel Strategy and
associated Action Plan for
2008-09.

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Extensive consultation
has been undertaken
with key stakeholders
and partners in the
education, transport,
health, children’s and
young services
sectors, and the
public.

School & Temporary
Governing Body

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of City
Development

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 70

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Sharp Lane Primary
School- Creation of New
Entrance and Provision of
Remodelling Works
Approval to carry out
capital works, and incur
expenditure in relation to
the proposed scheme to
create a new school
entrance, and to carry out
remodelling works.

Shire Oak CE Primary
Executive Board
School- Replacement
(Portfolio: Children's
Classroom Accommodation Services)
Approval to carry out
capital works and incur
expenditure in relation to
the proposed scheme to
provide replacement
classroom accommodation

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Decision Maker

Richmond Hill and
Swillington Primary
Permission to consult on
rebuilding schools.

Key Decisions

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision
Consultation
September 2008

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 71

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Children's Services)

The National Challenge
and Secondary Provision in
Central and East Leeds
Approval of structural
change required of the
Central Leeds Learning
Federation Schools and
Parklands as part of LCC
response to the DCSF for
the National Challenge.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Options for the Home to
School Transport Policy
Approval to consult on the
proposed options

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Roundhay Children's
Centre (DCR)
To inject £300K into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure.

Boston Spa Children's
Centre(DCR)
To inject £350K into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Formal consultation
following approval of
this report

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
Providers and
stakeholders city wide.

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
Providers and
stakeholders city wide.

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of Children's
Services

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Director of Children's
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 72

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Development and
Regeneration)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Environment and
Neighbourhoods)

Garforth Library
Authority to spend the Big
Lottery grant for the
refurbishment of Garforth
Library.

RHB 2008-11 Programme
Beverleys Acquisition and
Demolition Scheme
Authority to spend from
Executive Board.

Assistance to Vulnerable
Households
Authority to spend from
Executive Board.

Decision Maker

Lands Lane and Central
Square Public Realm
Improvements
Approve scheme design
and cost

Key Decisions

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision
The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

RHB Programme
Board

RHB Programme
Board

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Extensive consultation The report to be issued to
with the local
the decision maker with the
community. Local ward agenda for the meeting
members and
Executive Member
(Leisure)

Retailers /
stakeholders / Ward
Members / Lead
Member / Council
Officer through City
Centre Public Realm
Project Board

Proposed
Consultation

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of City
Development

Director of City
Development

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 73

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Executive Board
(Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods
and Housing)

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Leeds Private Sector
Housing Needs and Future
Investment Proposals
To approve the Leeds
Private Sector Housing
Needs and Future
Investment Proposals.

Home Energy
Conservation Act 12th
Report
Approval for release to
DEFRA, signing off by
Chief Officer prior to
release for the 14th
November deadline and for
information to the 5th
November 2008 Executive
Board.

Decision Maker

Area Delivery Plans for
2008/09
Endorsement of 10 Area
Delivery Plans

Key Decisions

31/10/08

8/10/08

8/10/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

N/A

None

Elected Ward
Members, Area
Committees,
Regeneration
Management Teams

Proposed
Consultation

Report

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Director of
Environment and
Neighbourhoods

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 74

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Chief Officer - Early
Years and Youth
Service

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Leisure)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Junior Youth Inclusion
Projects
Contract acceptance

Parks and Green Space
Strategy
To seek approval for the
publication of the Parks
and Green Space Strategy.

Leeds BSF Phase 2
Approval of the Final
Business Case in respect
of Crawshaw High School

Decision Maker

Independent Advice and
Guidance
Contract Acceptance

Key Decisions

5/11/08

5/11/08

3/11/08

3/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Extensive consultation
has taken place
throughout the
development of the
strategy with a range
of stakeholders and
members.

CPU

Corporate
Procurement Unit,
Joint Preventative
Commissioning Panel,
Joint Preventative
Partnership

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

None.

None.

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Deputy Chief
Executive

Director of City
Development

Director of Children's
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 75

Chief Highways
Officer

Highways Maintenance
Projects estimated to cost
in excess of £5,000 for
inclusion in the Highway
Maintenance Capital
Programme 2009/2010.

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Central
and Corporate)

Financial Performance Half
Year 2008/09
In noting the financial
position at the half year for
the Authority a decision will
be required as to the
treatment of any variation
identified.

Chief Officer
(PPPU)

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Merlyn Rees Youth Hub
Centre (DCR)
To inject £5million into the
Children’s Services Capital
Programme and give
authority to incur this
expenditure.

Framework Agreement for
Financial Advisors for PFI
Projects
To award the contract for
the Framework Agreement.

Decision Maker

Key Decisions

10/11/08

6/11/08

5/11/08

5/11/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Each elected member
will be consulted on
the proposed streets in
their ward during
September 2008.

N/A (advisors from
client departments
consulted)

Education Leeds,
Children’s Services,
providers and
stakeholders city wide.

Proposed
Consultation

Report to the Director of
City Development

Report to Panel

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker

Chief Highways Officer

Deputy Chief
Executive

Director of Resources

Director of Children's
Services

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 76

Decision Maker

Executive Board
(Portfolio: Children's
Services)

Key Decisions

Leeds BSF Phase 2
Approval of the Final
Business Case in respect
of Priesthorpe Specialist
Sports College.

3/12/08

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Documents to be
Considered by Decision
Maker
Deputy Chief
Executive

Lead Officer
(To whom
representations should
be made)

Page 77
Councillor Stewart Golton
Councillor Richard Harker
Councillor Peter Harrand
Councillor Keith Wakefield
Councillor Robert Finnigan
Councillor Judith Blake

Children’s Services

Learning

Adult Health and Social Care

Leader of the Labour Group

Leader of the Morley Borough
Independent Group

Advisory Member

In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.

Councillor John Procter

Councillor Steve Smith

Environmental Services

Leisure

Councillor Andrew Carter

Development and Regeneration

Councillor John Leslie Carter

Councillor Richard Brett

Central and Corporate

Neighbourhoods and Housing

Executive Member

Executive Board Portfolios

Key decisions are those executive decisions:
• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or
• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards

NOTES

Decision Maker

Council

Council

Decisions

Budget

Council Plan

Council

Council

Council

Council

Children & Young
People’s Plan

Community Strategy

Council Business
Plan

Crime and Disorder
Reduction Strategy

Page 78

Expected Date
of Decision

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Proposed
Consultation
Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Documents to be considered
by Decision Maker
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

Lead Officer

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Council

Council

Council

Council

Council

Council

Local Transport Plan

Plans and alterations
which together
comprise the
Development plan
Youth Justice Plan

Licensing Authority
Policy Statement

Leeds Strategic Plan

Safer Leeds
Partnership Plan
2008

Health and Wellbeing Council
Partnership Plan

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Council

Proposed
Consultation
Via Executive
Board

Development Plan
documents

Expected Date
of Decision

Decision Maker

Decisions

Page 79

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Documents to be considered
by Decision Maker
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Lead Officer

Council

Council

Council

Economic
Development
Strategy

Climate Change
Strategy

Leeds Housing
Strategy

Expected Date
of Decision

Via Executive
Board

Via Executive
Board

Proposed
Consultation
Via Executive
Board

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Documents to be considered
by Decision Maker
Report to be issued to the
decision maker with the agenda
for the meeting

Lead Officer

Full Council ( a meeting of all Members of Council) are responsible for the adoption of the Budget and Policy Framework.

NOTES:
The Council’s Constitution, in Article 4, defines those plans and strategies which make up the Budget and Policy Framework. Details of the
consultation process are published in the Council’s Forward Plan as required under the Budget and Policy Framework.

Decision Maker

Decisions

Page 80

EXECUTIVE BOARD
TUESDAY, 2ND SEPTEMBER, 2008
PRESENT:

Councillor R Brett in the Chair
Councillors A Carter, R Finnigan, S Golton,
R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter and
K Wakefield
Councillor J Blake – Non-Voting advisory member

60

Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents
The Chair advised that a Ward Member had sought an appeal in accordance
with Access to Information Procedure Rule 25.2 in respect of information
relating to the report referred to in minute 81.
In response, the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) advised
that the information sought did not form part of the report which had been
submitted to this meeting and therefore there were no grounds on which to
make such an appeal. However, the Board noted that the information in
question was also being sought via an appeal in accordance with Access to
Information Procedure Rule 25.3, and that access to the requested
information was currently being determined so that if required, a meeting of a
committee of the Executive Board could be promptly convened to determine
the appeal.
In response, the Ward Member acknowledged the comments made and
welcomed the prospect of a swift resolution to the matter.

61

Exclusion of the Public
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the
grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted
or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as
follows:
(a)

Appendix 2 to the report referred to in minute 69 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2) and on the
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information because Education
Leeds has a duty to secure improvement and increased confidence in
the schools concerned, which would be adversely affected by the
disclosure of this information.

(b)

Appendix 2 to the report referred to in minute 70 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2), and on the
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 81

the public interest in disclosing the information because Education
Leeds has a duty to secure improvement and increased confidence in
the schools concerned, which would be adversely affected by the
disclosure of this information.
(c)

The appendix to the report referred to in minute 73 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), and on the grounds that
this information is not publicly available from the statutory registers of
information kept in respect of certain companies and charities. It is
considered that since this information was obtained through the inviting
of best and final offers for the property/land then it is not in the public
interest to disclose this information at this point in time as this could
lead to random competing bids which would undermine this method of
inviting bids and affect the integrity of disposing of property/land by this
process. Also it is considered that the release of such information
would or would be likely to prejudice the Council’s commercial interests
in relation to other similar transactions in that prospective purchasers of
other similar properties would have access to information about the
nature and level of offers which may prove acceptable to the Council.
It is considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure,
much of this information will be publicly available from the Land
Registry following completion of this transaction and consequently the
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public
interest in disclosing this information at this point in time.

(d)

Appendix B to the report referred to in minute 78 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2), as the appendix
makes reference to the situation of an individual affected by the
present situation, and 10.4(3) and (5) as the appendix contains an
analysis of the Council’s current legal position and proposed course of
action for resolution through court proceedings. In each case the
information is exempt and so long, as in all of the circumstances of the
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the
public interest in disclosing the information. It is submitted that such is
the case at the present time.

(e)

Appendix 2 to the report referred to in minute 80 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), and on the grounds that
this information is not publicly available from the statutory registers of
information kept in respect of certain companies and charities. It is
considered that since this information was obtained through inviting
best and final offers for the property/land and also one to one
negotiations, then it is not in the public interest to disclose this
information at this point in time as this could lead to random competing
bids which would undermine this method of inviting bids and affect the
integrity of disposing of property/land by this process. Also it is
considered that the release of such information would or would be
likely to prejudice the Council’s commercial interests in relation to other
similar transactions in that prospective purchasers of other similar
properties would have access to information about the nature and level
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 82

of offers which may prove acceptable to the Council. It is considered
that whilst there may be public interest in disclosure, much of this
information will be publicly available from Land Registry following
completion of this transaction and consequently the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing
this information at this point in time.
(f)

62

The appendix to the report referred to in minute 83 under the terms of
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), and on the grounds that
this information is not publicly available from the statutory registers of
information kept in respect of certain companies and charities. It is
considered that since this information was obtained through inviting
best and final offers for the land then it is not in the public interest to
disclose this information at this point in time as this could lead to
random competing bids which undermine this method of inviting bids
and affect the integrity of disposing of land by this process. Also it is
considered that the release of such information would or would be
likely to prejudice the Council’s commercial interests in relation to other
similar transactions in that prospective bidders for other similar
contracts would be aware of the nature and level of offers which may
prove acceptable to the Council. It is considered that the public interest
in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing
this information at this point in time.

Late Items
The Board noted that a Ward Member had submitted a business plan of
Kirkstall Community Interest Company and had requested that it was
considered in conjunction with the report referred to in minute 81.
In response, the Chair advised that this matter would be determined under the
relevant agenda item.

63

Declaration of Interests
There were no declarations made at this point, however declarations of
interest were made at later points in the meeting (minutes 69 and 71 refer).

64

Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 16th July 2008 be
approved as a correct record.
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING

65

Disabled Facilities Grant 2008/09
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the
proposed injection of £1,005,000 of additional Department of Communities
and Local Government funding into the capital programme and which sought
authorisation of £6,000,000 scheme expenditure in order to meet the demand
for mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants for private sector and registered
social landlord disabled residents in Leeds during 2008/09.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 83

RESOLVED –
(a)
That approval be given for the injection into the capital programme of
£1,005,000 of Department of Communities and Local Government
funding.
(b)
That the scheme expenditure of £6,000,000 for 2008/09 be authorised.
(c)
That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submit a further
report to the Board on the scheme’s progress at the appropriate time.
CHILDREN'S SERVICES
66

Children's Services update and framework for the next Children and
Young Peoples Plan
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report providing an update on
the key areas of progress made across children’s services and the Children’s
Trust arrangements in Leeds, providing the wider context for a number of
significant children’s services policy developments and outlining the process
and progress of the review of Leeds’ Children and Young People’s Plan in
preparation for the production of a new Plan for 2009 and beyond.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the report be noted and received as part of the background to
other key children’s services reports in the coming months.
(b)
That the government’s current consultation on children’s trust
arrangements and Leeds’ position in relation to this be noted.
(c)
That the process for consulting on and developing the Children and
Young People’s Plan for 2009 be noted and endorsed.
(d)
That the issue of locality working in respect of children’s services
arrangements be specifically addressed as part of the future Children
and Young People’s Plan review.

67

The Placement of Children in Care in Leeds - A Strategy for 2008-2010
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report on the proposed
strategy for the development of improved placements for Looked After
Children in Leeds.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and that approval be given to the
2008-2010 Placement Strategy for Looked After Children in Leeds.

68

Closure of Iveson Approach Children's Home
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report outlining the business
case for the proposed closure of Iveson Approach Children’s Home and
providing details of the proposed process by which residents welfare and staff
employment rights would be protected.
RESOLVED – That the proposed closure of Iveson Approach Children’s
Home be approved.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 84

69

Biannual update on Ofsted Inspections and Schools Causing Concern Primary
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report outlining the
performance of primary schools from January 2008 to June 2008, and
highlighting the actions taken by Education Leeds in order to fulfil its
responsibilities to the Board and the schools.
Following consideration of appendix 2 to the report designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2), which was
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was
RESOLVED – That the progress which has been made in recent years, in
addition to the key issues and challenges which are currently being addressed
be noted.
(Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in this item due to his
position as Governor of Morley Victoria Primary School)

70

Biannual Update on Ofsted Inspections and Schools Causing Concern Secondary
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report summarising
recent OfSTED inspection results for secondary schools and outlining the
overall pattern of judgements under the current OfSTED framework. The
report also provided an update on the progress of schools causing concern
and highlighted the implications of the government’s new ‘National Challenge’
for schools.
Following consideration of appendix 2 to the report designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2), which was
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the contents of the report and the implications of the information
detailed within the report with regard to planning the future support and
development of secondary schools in Leeds be noted.
(b)
That the Board’s congratulations be extended to the students, staff and
governors of Leeds schools on the recent GCSE results which have
been achieved.

71

School Admission Appeals Code - DCSF Consultation Document
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report
informing Members of the Department for Children Schools and Families
(DCSF) Consultation Document on the School Admissions Appeals Code
which was launched on 12th June 2008, with particular reference to the
proposal to revise a previous amendment to the Code so that Elected
Members may in future represent parents who appeared before school
admission appeals panels provided there was no conflict of interest. The
report also sought approval of a proposed response to the consultation
document as appended to the report.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 85

RESOLVED – That the report be noted and that approval be given to the
proposed response to the DCSF Consultation Document on the School
Admissions Appeals Code, as appended to the report.
(Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in this item due to his
position as a member of the Leeds Admissions Forum)
LEISURE
72

Revision of Byelaws for Pleasure Grounds, Public Walks and Open
Spaces
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report
advising of proposals to revise byelaws which applied to pleasure grounds,
public walks and open spaces and requesting Executive Board to recommend
to full Council the adoption of the byelaws, subject to public consultation and
confirmation by the Secretary of State.
RESOLVED – That Council be recommended to approve that the draft
byelaws as appended to the report, be made, sealed and placed on deposit,
and that the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) be authorised
to advertise the intention to apply for confirmation of the byelaws and
subsequently to apply to the Secretary of State for confirmation.
(The matters referred to in this minute were matters reserved to Council and
were therefore not eligible for Call In)

73

Roundhay Mansion - Progress Update
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing an update on
the progress made with the letting of Roundhay Mansion as a restaurant/
function facility. The report also recommended a preferred bidder and sought
approval to enter into a lease with that bidder and for the expenditure of
capital monies which form part of the landlord’s improvements to the
premises.
The appendix to the report was designated as exempt under Access to
Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and was circulated at the meeting.
Following consideration of the exempt appendix in private at the conclusion of
the meeting it was
RESOLVED – That approval be given to the granting of a lease of Roundhay
Mansion to Dine Hospitality Limited on the terms as outlined within the
confidential schedule of offers circulated at the meeting.

74

A Draft Vision for the Council's Leisure Centres and Proposals for
Future Provision for Public Consultation
The Director of City Development submitted a report outlining the current
financial position of the Council’s Sport and Active Recreation Service and
proposing a draft vision for Leisure Centre provision in Leeds. The report also
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 86

sought approval of a series of draft proposals regarding the provision of and
investment in the Council’s Leisure Centres.
It was proposed that the consultation exercise, as detailed within the report,
be revised in order to include all ten Area Committees.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the pressures currently facing the Sport and Active Recreation
Service be noted.
(b)
That approval be given to the undertaking of a public consultation
exercise on the proposals set out in the report subject to the above
revision, with the Director of City Development reporting back to the
Board on the outcome of the consultation exercise in December 2008.
(Under the provision of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he voted against the decisions taken in this
minute)
75

West Yorkshire Playhouse First Floor Project - Request for a Loan
The Chief Libraries, Arts and Heritage Officer submitted a report outlining the
details of a request made by the West Yorkshire Playhouse for a loan of
£160,000 to help fund the First Floor Project.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the loan of £160,000 to West Yorkshire Playhouse over a period
of 5 years be approved.
(b)
That the loan be repaid over a 5 year period, at a rate of £37,000 per
annum, which will be deducted from the annual grant payable to West
Yorkshire Playhouse.
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE

76

Financial Health Monitoring 2008/09 - First Quarter Report
The Director of Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s
financial health position for 2008/09 after three months of the financial year in
respect of the revenue expenditure and income to date compared to the
approved budget, the projected year end position and proposed actions to
work towards achieving a balanced budget by the year end. The report also
highlighted the position regarding other key financial indicators, including
Council Tax collection and the payment of creditors.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the projected financial position of the authority after three months
of the new financial year be noted.
(b)
That directorates be requested to continue to develop and implement
budgetary action plans.
(c)
That the release of £550,000 earmarked reserve for Lifetime Homes as
detailed at paragraph 4.6 of the report be approved.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 87

77

Illegal Money Lending Project - Tackling Loan Sharks
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) and the Director of
City Development submitted a joint report providing an update on the work of
the Illegal Money Lending Project and requesting an extension in relation to
the work of the project which has been operating in partnership with West
Yorkshire Trading Standards Service, to investigate and institute proceedings
against illegal money lenders within the Leeds district.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the report be noted and in the light of the extension of funding for
the project, the delegated powers to authorise Birmingham City Council
to institute proceedings within the Leeds district contained within the
Protocol for Illegal Money Lending Team Investigations be extended
from March 2009 to March 2011.
(b)
That the Board’s thanks be extended to the Financial Inclusion Unit for
the valuable work they are undertaking in this field.

78

Hall Farm, Micklefield - Proposal for Compulsory Purchase Order
The Director of City Development and the Chief Officer (Legal, Licensing and
Registration) submitted a joint report seeking approval to proceed with a
Compulsory Purchase Order to acquire a strip of land at Hall Farm, Micklefield
for the laying out of a tree belt adjoining the Hall Farm Park estate.
Following consideration of appendix B to the report designated as exempt
under Access to Information Procedure Rule10.4(1), (2), (3) and (5), which
was considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was
RESOLVED – That officers be authorised to take all necessary steps to
secure the making, confirmation and implementation of the Compulsory
Purchase Order at Hall Farm, Micklefield.
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

79

Deputation to Council - Local Residents concerned with the
deteriorating condition of Tingley Bar Roundabout / Gyratory
The Director of City Development submitted a report in response to the
deputation to full Council on 9th April 2008 by local residents concerned about
the condition of Tingley Bar Roundabout/Gyratory. The report outlined the
actions which had been taken following the submission of the deputation.
RESOLVED – That the actions taken by various sections of the Council
following the receipt of the deputation relating to Tingley Bar Roundabout/
Gyratory, Morley, be noted.

80

Deputation to Council - Newton Futures Residents Group Regarding the
Condition of Former Council Property at 9 Newton Grove
The Director of City Development submitted a report in response to the
deputation to full Council on 2nd July 2008 by Newton Futures Residents’
Group regarding the condition of the former Council owned property at 9,
Newton Grove. The report also provided the background to the sale of the
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 88

property, and sought approval to take appropriate action to ensure that the
property was transferred into responsible ownership.
Appendix 2, detailed as exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule
10.4(3) contained several options which the Council could pursue in
connection with the property and following consideration of that appendix,
which was considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was
RESOLVED –
(a)
That approval be given to option 4.1(iii) as detailed within exempt
appendix 2 to the report and that the buy back notice is served on the
owner of the property, and negotiation of a back to back sale onto the
Leeds and Yorkshire Housing Association takes place.
(b)
That an injection into the capital programme of £105,000 be
authorised.
81

Response to Deputation by Kirkstall Valley Community Association to
Full Council and a Separate Verbal Deputation to North West (Inner)
Area Committee in Respect of St Ann's Mills
The Chief Asset Management Officer submitted a report in response to the
deputation to full Council on 2nd July 2008 by Kirkstall Valley Community
Association concerning the future of the mill buildings in Kirkstall and the
separate verbal deputation to the North West (Inner) Area Committee on 3rd
July 2008 regarding the disposal of St Ann’s Mills, Kirkstall.
Further to minute 62, the Chair advised that in accordance with Access to
Information Procedure Rule 4.3, he would not permit the consideration of a
business plan of Kirkstall Community Interest Company which had been
submitted by the Ward Member, as he had been previously permitted to
submit a document of a similar nature to the Board for consideration.
RESOLVED – That the deputation to full Council by the Kirkstall Valley
Community Association, the separate verbal deputation to the North West
(Inner) Area Committee and the response as detailed within the report be
noted.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
contained within this minute)

82

Adoption of the Supplementary Planning Document of the Streets
Design Guide
The Director of City Development submitted a report outlining the outcome of
the consultation exercise on the Street Design Guide. The report also sought
endorsement of the amended document and approval for the adoption of the
Street Design Guide as a Supplementary Planning Document.
RESOLVED – That the report be withdrawn, due to the expected receipt of a
deputation regarding the prevention of development of shared spaces by the
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 89

Leeds Branch of the National Federation of the Blind to full Council on 10th
September 2008.
83

Former Leeds International Pool Site, Wilson Street, Leeds, LS1
The Director of City Development submitted a report advising of the progress
which had been made and discussions which had taken place between the
Council and its preferred developer of the site. The report also sought
approval to progress with the disposal of the site on the revised terms as
contained within the exempt appendix to the report.
The report presented the following options:(A)
(B)
(C)

Withdraw from the sale and remarket the property
Withdraw from the sale and the Council retain the property
Proceed with the Council’s preferred developer on the proposed
revised terms

The appendix to the report was designated as exempt under Access to
Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and was circulated at the meeting.
Following consideration of the exempt appendix in private at the conclusion of
the meeting it was
RESOLVED – That the Council progress with the sale of the site to the
Council’s preferred developer, Hbg Properties Ltd, on the revised terms as
contained within the exempt appendix, with the Director of City Development
having the delegated powers to agree the detailed terms.

DATE OF PUBLICATION:
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN:

4TH SEPTEMBER 2008
11TH SEPTEMBER 2008 (5.00 PM)

(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12.00 noon on
Friday, 12th September 2008)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 8th October, 2008

Page 90

